
Thursday, January 6, 2022
2:00 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

******************************************COVID 19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****************************************

PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCING

Consistent with California Assembly Bill 361 and Government Code Section 54953, due to the 
COVID-19 State of Emergency and the recommendations for physical distancing, the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meeting will be held virtually. To 
maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency, members of the public may observe and 
participate in the meeting from home. The public is invited to participate telephonically or electronically 
via the methods below:

1)  To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android at the 
noticed meeting time, go to https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 97545900346

2)  To join the Zoom meeting by phone  dial 1 669 900 6833, enter meeting ID: 975 4590 0346  If asked 
for the participant ID or code, press #.

Public Comments
Members of the public may comment on matters within the purview of the Committee that are not on the 
meeting agenda during the general public comment item at the beginning of the meeting.  Comments 
related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until the time the agenda item is considered 
and the Chair invites public comment. Members of the public are welcome to address the Committee, 
however, under the Brown Act Committee members may not deliberate or take action on items not on 
the agenda, and generally may only listen.

Instructions for submitting a Public Comment are on the next page.

Agenda - Final



Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 9:00 
a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 
agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 
corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 
info@nvta.ca.gov after 9 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out loud .  
If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should raise their 
hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1.  To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the 
“Participants” tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You 
must unmute yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted 
time, you will then be re muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” are available at 
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en us/articles/205566129 Raise Hand In Webinar.

2.  To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 
Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 
for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re muted. 

Instructions on how to join a Zoom video conference meeting are available at: 
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en us/articles/201362193 Joining a Meeting

Instructions on how to join a Zoom video conference meeting by phone are available at: 
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en us/articles/201362663 Joining a meeting by phone

Note: The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered 
due to technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.   

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA TAC are 
posted on the NVTA website 72 hours prior to the meeting at: https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx  
or by emailing info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the agenda. 

Materials distributed to the members of the Committee present at the meeting will be available for public 
inspection after the meeting. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does 
not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 
6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 
formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability related modification or 
accommodation should contact Kathy Alexander, NVTA Deputy Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8627 
during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 
only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 
discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 
Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259 8627.  Requerimos que solicite 
asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 
ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 
Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA TAC.  Para sa mga 
tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259 8627.  Kakailanganin 
namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 
kahilingan.



January 6, 2022Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC)

Agenda - Final

1.  Call To Order

2.a  Roll Call

2.b AB 361 Remote Meeting Authorization (Kathy Alexander) (Page 7)

That the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) approve holding the January 
6, 2022 and February 3, 2022 meetings remotely in accordance with 
NVTA Resolution 21-30 which finds that COVID-19 emergency conditions 
persist and warrant that NVTA hold all open and public meetings remotely 
in accordance with Government Code section 54953, subdivision (e) and 
other applicable provisions of the Brown Act for remote only teleconference 
meetings.

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

3.  Public Comment

4.  Committee Member Comments

5.  Staff Comments

6.  STANDING AGENDA ITEMS

6.1  County Transportation Agency Report (Danielle Schmitz)

6.2  Project Monitoring Funding Programs* (Alberto Esqueda)

6.3 Caltrans Report  (Pages 8-12)

Caltrans Report.pdfAttachments:

6.4  Vine Trail Update

6.5  Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck)

6.6  Measure T Update (Victoria Ortiz)

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items they are approximate and intended 
as estimates only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed.

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/30/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f65e038-ca31-4aa3-86d5-15a5ed4a3bb2.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ba3f771d-cbbb-423c-8508-66c3dc27b57c.pdf


January 6, 2022Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC)

Agenda - Final

7.  CONSENT AGENDA

7.1 Meeting Minutes of November 4, 2021 Technical Advisory 

Committee Meeting (Kathy Alexander)  (Pages 15-18)

TAC action will approve the November 4, 2021 meeting minutes.Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft Minutes.pdfAttachments:

8.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

8.1 Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition (NVVTC) Technical Advisory 

Committee Appointment  (Alberto Esqueda)  (Pages 19-21)

That the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) appoint a member and an 
alternate to represent the TAC on the NVVTC Board of Directors.

Recommendation:

2:35 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

8.2 Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth 

Strategy (IGS) Update (Diana Meehan)  (Pages 22-48

That the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommend the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board accept and file the Priority 
Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy Update.

Recommendation:

2:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/30/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6ea27fdf-923c-4ceb-a84d-fdf8c9663978.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7879c2ad-e59e-4ee5-a091-36e99da21172.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cfe85394-c794-4bdc-a3da-494ad626b30c.pdf


January 6, 2022Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC)

Agenda - Final

8.3 Measure T Fiscal Year 2021-22 Year-To-Date Financial Update and 

April-June Sales Tax Update  (Roxanna Moradi)  (Pages 49-63)

That the TAC review a report on Measure T sales tax revenues provided by 
the Auditor-Controller which provides the actual revenues-to-date 
compared to projections for FY 2021-22 (FY22).

Recommendation:

2:50 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

8.4 Legislative Update* (Kate Miller) 

That the TAC receive the state and federal legislative updates. 
Information only

Recommendation:

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

8.5 January 19, 2022 NVTA Board Meeting and NVTA-TA Board 

Meeting Draft Agendas* (Kate Miller)

That the TAC receive the January 19, 2022 NVTA Board and NVTA-TA 
Board meeting draft agendas.  Information only

Recommendation:

3:05 p.m.Estimated Time:

9.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

10.  ADJOURNMENT

10.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of February 3, 2022 and Adjournment.

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/30/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7b91725a-a438-4061-98cc-29b3b88714cb.pdf


January 6, 2022Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC)

Agenda - Final

I, Kathy Alexander, hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location 
freely accessible to members of the public at the NVTA offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 
p.m., on  Thursday, December 30, 2021

Kathy Alexander (e-sign)  12/30/2021 
___________________________________________________________
Kathy Alexander, Deputy Board Secretary             

*Information will be available at the meeting

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 12/30/2021



January 6, 2022 
TAC Agenda Item 2.b 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Technical Advisory Committee Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Technical Advisory Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kathy Alexander 

(707) 259-8627 / Email: kalexander@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the TAC approve holding the January 6, 2022 TAC meeting and the February 3, 
2022 TAC meeting via teleconference as the existing emergency declaration and local 
recommendation continue, which permit relaxed remote meeting allowances in 
accordance with AB 361. 

BACKGROUND 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

On September 27, 2021 the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely in order to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  

NVTA staff is monitoring the status of the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, 
state and local orders related to social distancing, and health and safety conditions related 
to COVID-19, and confirms that said conditions continue to exist that warrant remote only 
meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e)(3). Staff recommends the TAC consider extending the time during which 
it may continue to meet by teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (b) of section 54953 of the Brown Act. 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 

7

mailto:kalexander@nvta.ca.gov


Draft 
January 2022 NVTA- Caltrans Report 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
PIR (Project Initiation Report) PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)  
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document) PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate) 
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List) CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)  
ADV (Advertise Contract) BO (Bid Open) AWD (Award Contract) 

1 of 5 

PROJECT INITIATION REPORT 

EA 4AA30        
Storm Damage; NAPA 128 PM 12.5 in County of Napa 
Scope: Storm Damage Restoration 

EA 4AC80  (Completed in June 2021)   
Pavement Rehab; NAPA 29 PM 0.0/7.0 in American Canyon & County of Napa 
Scope: Pavement rehabilitation 

EA 4AC90  (Completed in June 2021)   
Safety; Various Locations in County of Napa 
Scope: Install/ Upgrade Horizontal Alignment Warning Signs 

EA 4Q010  
PSR/PDS: NAPA 29 PM 0.6/R2.5 in City of American Canyon 
Scope: Multi-Modal Corridor Improvements 

EA 2Q510  
Pavement Rehab; NAPA 29 PM 42.1/48.6 in County of Napa 
Scope: Pavement rehabilitation 

EA 0Q800  
Major Damage ; NAPA 121 PM 6.9/12.1 in County of Napa 
Scope: Permanent Restoration; Inject grout at sinkhole and install drainage 

EA 2W370  
Major Damage ; NAPA 29 PM 42.57 in County of Napa 
Scope: Replace failed netting with new netting, remove debris, and install additional erosion control. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

EA 2Q610   
Pavement Rehab; NAPA 29 PM R7.3/13.5 in County of Napa 
Scope: Pavement rehabilitation. 
Cost Estimate: $23.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule:   PAED: 03/2022 PS&E: 02/2024 RWC: 04/2024  RTL: 04/2024 

EA 2K150  
Bridge Rails; NAPA 29 PM 28.43/29.3 in County of Napa 
Scope: Upgrade / Replace Bridge Rails at Sulphur and York Creeks in St. Helena 
Cost Estimate: $4.2M Construction Capital  
Schedule: PAED: 11/29/21 (Proceeding with no-build alternative. Project Archive, to be removed) 

January 6, 2022
TAC Agenda Item 6.3

Continued From: New
Action Requested: Information only

8



 
Draft     January 2022 

NVTA- Caltrans Report 
 

    ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

PIR (Project Initiation Report)  PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)  
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document)   PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)  
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List)   CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)      
ADV (Advertise Contract)  BO (Bid Open)   AWD (Award Contract) 
 

2 of 5 

EA 0Q830  
Storm Damage; NAPA 29 PM 46.1 in County of Napa 
Scope: Construct CIDH segmented pile wall at slipout 
Cost Estimate: $1.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 12/2021 PAED: 04/2022    PS&E: 08/2023 RWC:10/2023  RTL: 11/2023 

 
EA 0P730   
Advance Mitigation; NAPA 29 in County of Napa 
Scope: Roadside Protection and Restoration Program mitigation purchase 
Cost Estimate: $3.7M Funding Contribution 
Schedule:   PAED:07/2022       RTL: 09/2022  

 
EA 1Q620 Pavement Rehab; NAPA 121 PM 4.47/10.7 in City of Napa 
Scope: Pavement repair. 
Cost Estimate: $23.9M Construction Capital 
Schedule:   PAED: 06/2022   PS&E: 06/2023  RWC: 07/2023  RTL: 08/2023   
 
EA 4J820  
Tulucay Creek Bridge Replacement; NAPA 121 PM 5.9 in City of Napa 
Scope: Bridge Replacement 
Cost Estimate: $15.6M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 04/2022 PAED: 10/2022  PS&E: 04/2024 RWC: 05/2024  RTL: 05/2024  
 
EA 0J890  
5-Way Intersection; NAPA 121-PM 7.3 in City of Napa 
Scope: Intersection Improvement 
Cost Estimate: $7.4M Construction Capital ($1.9M SHOPP Contribution) 
Schedule: On-hold until securing additional local funds and completing a coop agreement. 

 
EA 0Q790   
Storm Damage; NAPA 121 PM 13.37/20.73 (5 locations) in County of Napa 
Scope: Construct RSP at five slipout locations. 
Cost Estimate: $4.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 07/2022 PAED: 11/2022  PS&E: 03/2024 RWC: 05/2024  RTL: 06/2024 

 
EA 0Q810  
Storm Damage; NAPA 121 PM 16.0/16.1 in County of Napa 
Scope: Repair pavement, replace drainage systems and upgrade guardrail. 
Cost Estimate: $1.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule:   PAED: 01/2022  PS&E: 03/2023 RWC: 05/2023  RTL: 06/2023  
 
EA 4J830  
Hopper Slough Creek; NAPA 128 PM 5.1 in County of Napa 
Scope: Bridge Replacement 
Cost Estimate: $7.9M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 03/2022 PAED: 06/2022  PS&E: 03/2024 RWC: 04/2024 RTL: 05/2024 
 
 
 
 

9



 
Draft     January 2022 

NVTA- Caltrans Report 
 

    ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

PIR (Project Initiation Report)  PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)  
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document)   PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)  
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List)   CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)      
ADV (Advertise Contract)  BO (Bid Open)   AWD (Award Contract) 
 

3 of 5 

EA 3Q760  
Rumble Strips; NAPA 29, 121 & 128 Various Locations in County of Napa 
Scope: Construct rumble strips at seven locations. 
Cost Estimate: $3.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule:   PAED: 01/2022  PS&E: 09/2022 RWC: 10/2022  RTL: 11/2022 
 

DESIGN 
 

EA 0Q820  
Storm Damage; NAPA 29 PM 11.6/13.0 in City of Napa 
Scope: Repair Culvert and stabilize the roadway. 
Cost Estimate: $13.4M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 09/2021  PS&E: 05/2022 RWC: 05/2022  RTL: 06/2022 CCA:  12/2023 
 
EA  2Q260  
Napa Valley Vine Trail; NAPA 29-PM 33.4/37.9 in County of Napa 
Scope: Construct Class 1 Multiuse Path 
Cost Estimate: $6.1M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 6/17/20 PAED: 01/15/21  PS&E: 12/10/2021 RWC: 12/10/2021       RTL: 12/10/2021 
 
EA 0Q690  
Storm Damage; NAPA 12 PM 2.1/2.6 in County of Napa 
Scope: Construct Rock Slope Protection (RSP) to prevent further slope washout and pavement repair 
Cost Estimate: $1.2M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 12/1/20  PS&E: 04/2022 RWC: 05/2022  RTL: 06/2022 CCA: 12/2024 
 
EA 0K000  
ADA Compliance; NAPA 29 PM 0.23/14.6 in County of Napa 
Scope: Upgrade Pedestrian Facilities 
Cost Estimate: $2.1M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 7/1/19     PS&E: 07/21 RWC: 09/2021 RTL: 09/2021  CCA: 02/2023 
 
EA 4J410  
Drainage Improvement; NAPA 29 PM 1.7/5.1 in City of American Canyon 
Scope: Rehabilitate Culverts 
Cost Estimate: $3.3M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 2/4/20  PSE: 11/2021 RWC: 3/2022 RTL: 3/2022 CCA: 09/2023    

 
EA 28120 
Soscol Junction Improvement; NAPA 29 PM 5.0/7.1 and NAPA 221 PM 0.0/0.7 in County of Napa  
Scope: Construct New Interchange at SR 221/29/12 
Cost Estimate: $47.5M Construction Capital 
Schedule:  PAED: 2/13/20  PSE: 08/26/21 RWC: 08/25/21 RTL: 08/26/21 CCA: 12/2024 

 
EA 4Q000  
Construction of Class I Bicycle and Pedestrian under crossing; NAPA 29-PM 11.7 in County of Napa 
Scope: Construction of Class I Bicycle and Pedestrian facility beneath SR-29; 
Cost Estimate: $1,261K Construction Capital  
Schedule: PAED: 06/2/15  PSE: 02/2022 RWC: 05/2022 RTL: 06/2022 CCA: 12/2022 

10



 
Draft     January 2022 

NVTA- Caltrans Report 
 

    ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

PIR (Project Initiation Report)  PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)  
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document)   PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)  
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List)   CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)      
ADV (Advertise Contract)  BO (Bid Open)   AWD (Award Contract) 
 

4 of 5 

EA 0K630  
Bridge Rails; NAPA 29 PM 16.48/19.04 in County of Napa 
Scope: Upgrade / Replace Bridge Rails 
Cost Estimate: $7.1M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 10/22/20    PS&E: 03/2022  RWC: 05/2022  RTL: 06/2022  CCA: 12/2024 
 
EA 4J300  
Pavement Preservation; NAPA 29-PM 29.3/36.9 From York Creek Bridge to Junction Route 128 in Calistoga 
Scope: Roadway/ Pavement preservation (CAPM) 
Cost Estimate: $9.7M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 6/30/20     PS&E: 5/18/21 RWC: 5/24/21  RTL: 6/11/21 CCA: 11/2022 
 
EA 2J88U  
Garnett Creek, Garnett Branch and No-Name Creek:  NAPA 29-PM 38.9 / 42.9 in County of Napa 
Scope: Sub-structure rehabilitation and 3 bridges scour mitigation  
Cost Estimate: $5.26M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 2/1/19  PSE: 09/2022  RWC: 11/2022 RTL: 12/2022 CCA: 02/2024 
 
EA 4G21A  
Env. Mitigation at Huichica Creek; NAPA 121-PM 0.75 in County of Napa  
Scope: Environmental mitigation, monitoring and report at Huichica Creek 
Cost Estimate: $1.0M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 4/9/18  PS&E: 03/2023 RWC: 04/2023 RTL: 05/2023 CCA: 12/2028 

 
EA 1G43A  
Env. Mitigation at Conn Creek; NAPA 128 PM R7.4 on Silverado Trail in County of Napa 
Scope: Environmental mitigation, monitoring and report at Conn Creek  
Cost Estimate: $0.2M Construction Capital  
Schedule: PAED: 10/5/15  PS&E: 6/28/21 RWC: 08/10/2021 RTL: 08/23/2021    CCA: 12/2026 
 
EA 4G84A  
Capell Creek Bridge Env Mitigation; NAPA 128-PM 20.2 in County of Napa 
Scope: Environmental Permit Mitigation & Plant Establishment to Bridge Replacement 
Cost Estimate: $0.5M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 6/16/16     RWC: 05/2023  RTL: 05/2023  CCA: 03/2027 

 
EA 4J990  
Storm Water Quality Improvement; NAPA 29 PM 33.13 in County of Napa 
Scope: Improve water quality and fish passage 
Cost Estimate: $6.9M Construction Capital 
Schedule: DED: 12/2/20 PAED: 06/2021    PS&E: 03/2023 RWC: 03/2023  RTL: 04/2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
Draft     January 2022 

NVTA- Caltrans Report 
 

    ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

PIR (Project Initiation Report)  PSR (Project Study Report) DED (Draft Environmental Document)  
PAED (Project Approval/ Environmental Document)   PSE (Plans, Specifications, and Estimate)  
RWC (Right of Way Certification) RTL (Ready to List)   CCA (Construction Contract Acceptance)      
ADV (Advertise Contract)  BO (Bid Open)   AWD (Award Contract) 
 

5 of 5 

CONSTRUCTION 
 
EA 2J100  
Construct Roundabouts; NAPA 29-PM 11.36 in City of Napa 
Scope: Cooperative Project to construct a roundabout at northbound First St. Interchange. 
Cost Estimate: $3.8M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 7/18/16 RTL: 5/4/18 AWD:2/27/19 (O.C. Jones & Sons, Inc) CCA: 05/11/2021 

 
 
EA 3G64A    
Env. Mitigation & Plant Establishment at Napa River Bridge; NAPA 29 PM 37.0 in City of Calistoga 
Scope: Environmental mitigation at Napa River Bridge 
Cost Estimate: $0.5M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 2/9/15 RTL: 5/29/19 AWD: 5/28/20 (Hanford Applied )  CCA: 06/2024 
 
EA 4G210   
Widen Roadway at Huichica Creek; NAPA 121-PM 0.75 in County of Napa  
Scope: Remove existing triple box culverts and replace with a new single span bridge 
Cost Estimate: $8.7M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 4/9/18 RTL: 12/8/20 AWD: 5/19/21 (Gordon Ball Inc)  CCA: 03/2024 
 
EA 4J210  
Capell Creek Bridge; NAPA 121-PM 18.59 in County of Napa 
Scope: Sub-structure rehabilitation and bridge scour mitigation 
Cost Estimate: $1.4M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 7/24/17 RTL: 5/18/20  AWD: 11/2/20 (Ghilotti Const. Inc) CCA: 12/2021 
 
EA 2J570  
Capell Creek Storm Damage Repair; NAPA 121-PM 20.5/20.7 in County of Napa 
Scope: Embankment stabilization and culvert repair 
Cost Estimate: $1.48M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 7/24/17 RTL: 6/29/18 AWD: 11/19/18 (Granite Rock Co.) CCA: 03/2022 
 
EA 1G430  
Conn Creek Bridge Scour Mitigation; NAPA 128 PM R7.4 on Silverado Trail in County of Napa 
Scope: Replace Bridge at Conn Creek  
Cost Estimate: $7.1M Construction Capital  
Schedule: PAED: 10/5/15 RTL: 6/29/18 AWD:3/29/19 (Ghilotti Construction) CCA: 02/2022 
 
EA 4G840     
Capell Creek Bridge; NAPA 128-PM 20.2 in County of Napa 
Scope: Bridge Replacement 
Cost Estimate: $12.1M Construction Capital 
Schedule: PAED: 6/16/16 RTL: 6/29/18 AWD: 11/5/18 (Gordon Ball Inc.)  CCA: 01/2023 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
 

12



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 
ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

BUILD Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage 
Development 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program 
HTF Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

13



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RM3 Regional Measure 3 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

14



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

JoAnn Busenbark Boardroom 
Thursday, November 4, 2021 2:00 PM 

1. Call To Order

Chair Hecock called the meeting to order at 2:03 p.m. 

2. Roll Call

Present: 10 - Chairperson Aaron Hecock 
Ahmann Smithies 
Clark 
Lucido 
Lederer 
Ferons 
Rayner 
Weir 
Rincon-Ibarra 
Levine 

Non-Voting: 3 -  Ramirez 
Chang 
Meligy 

Absent: 4 -  Cooper 
Hawkes 

3. Introductions

Also present:  
Rosalba Ramirez, Town of Yountville 
Amani Meligy, Caltrans 
Daniel Chang, Caltrans 
Philip Sales, Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition (NVVTC) 
Justin Hole 

NVTA staff present: Kate Miller, Danielle Schmitz, Antonio Onorato, Diana Meehan, Alberto 
Esqueda, Roxanna Moradi, Sanjay Mishra, Libby Payan, Victoria Ortiz, Kathy Alexander 

4. Public Comment

None 

January 6, 2022 
TAC Agenda Item 7.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: Approve 

15



 

  

5.  Committee Member and Staff Comments 
 
 Diana Meehan, NVTA - the California Transportation Commission staff are offering one on one  
 meetings January-March 2022 with jurisdictions that are considering applying for the Active  
 Transportation Program in Cycle 6.  Additionally, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission  
 is  in the process of updating their Complete Streets policy.  Diana will let the TAC know when  
 comments are being accepted on policy changes. 
 
6.  STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
6.1  County Transportation Agency Report (Danielle Schmitz) 
 
 Danielle Schmitz provided the following updates from the October County Transportation  
 Agency Executive Director's meeting: 
   - Assembly member Laura Friedman participated in the meeting and indicated the State may  
 supplement transit and active transportation funding from the state budget surplus. 
   - The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is working on the One Bay Area Grant  
 Cycle 3 (OBAG 3) policy, allocations and programming guidelines framework. 
   - The California Transportation Commission (CTC) will release the next SB 1 call for projects in  
 2022.  The CTC has been holding workshops on Solutions for Congested Corridors, Local  
 Partnership Program (LPP) and Active Transportation Program (ATP) programs. 
   - Senator Dodd has agreed to carry legislation for tolling on SR 37. 
 
6.2  Project Monitoring Funding Programs (Alberto Esqueda) 
 
 Alberto Esqueda reviewed the projects on the Caltrans Inactive list. 
 
6.3  Caltrans’ Report (Daniel Chang) 
 
 Amani Meligy reviewed the Caltrans Report. 
 
6.4  Vine Trail Update (Trevor Hawkes) 
 
 Sanjay Mishra provided an update on the right of way and utility certifications for the St. Helena  
 to Calistoga segment of the Vine Trail. 
 
 It was noted that the current delegate and alternate appointed to represent the TAC on the Napa  
 Valley Vine Trail Coalition Board of Directors are unable to continue serving. TAC members  
 were asked to consider serving.  This item will be on the next meeting's agenda. 
 
7.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 MOTION by CLARK, SECOND by RAYNER to APPROVE Consent Items 7.1-7.2.  Motion carried  
 by  the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 10 -  Chairperson Hecock, Member Ahmann Smithies, Member Clark, Member Lucido, Alternate  
 Member Lederer, Member Ferons, Member Rayner, Member Weir, Member Rincon-Ibarra,  
 and Member Levine 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Member Cooper, and Alternate Member Hawkes. 
 
7.1 Meeting Minutes of October 7, 2021 TAC Meeting (Kathy Alexander)    
 (Pages  9-13) 
 
7.2 AB 361 Consideration of Conducting Safe Public Meetings (Kathy  
 Alexander)   (Page 14) 
 

16



 

  

8.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
8.1 Measure T Update (Victoria Ortiz)  (Pages 15-30) 
 
 Victoria Ortiz provided an overview of the Measure T workshop, Policy and Procedure updates  
 and spending on the 6.67% class 1 equivalent projects, Semi-Annual Progress report due date  
 changes, and the Notice of Completion memo. 
 
 Public comment was received from Philip Sales. 
 
8.2 Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth Strategy Update  
 (Diana Meehan)  (Pages 31-40) 
 
 Diana Meehan provided an overview of the PDA Investment Growth Strategy (IGS) update, which  
 is required every four years.  There are two PDAs in Napa County - one in the City of Napa and  
 the City of American Canyon and staff will meet with those two jurisdictions to compile a list of  
 planned transportation, housing and development projects. Staff is also requesting that  
 jurisdictions without PDAs consider participating in the exercise in order to facilitate better  
 planning for transportation investments throughout the county. 
 
 NVTA must submit a draft PDA-IGS document to MTC/ABAG staff by December 15, 2021 and a  
 Board approved PDA-IGS by the end of January 2022. 
 
8.3 Vine Transit Update (Libby Payan)   (Pages 41-46) 
 
 Libby Payan reported on the Vine's operational performance for the first quarter for Fiscal Year  
 2021-22 as well as upcoming service changes effective November 21, 2021. 
 
8.4 Nomination and Election of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of the  
 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for Calendar Year 2022 (Danielle  
 Schmitz)  (Pages 47-48) 
 
 Vice Chair Clark volunteered to serve as the TAC Chair for 2022, following the tradition of the  
 vice chair moving up to the chair role.   
 
 Member Lucido nominated Member Ferons to serve as Vice Chair, and Member Ferons  
 accepted. 
 
 There were no other nominations or volunteers. 
 MOTION by AHMANN SMITHIES, SECOND by LUCIDO to APPOINT Member Clark as Chair and  
 Member Ferons as Vice Chair for calendar year 2022.  Motion carried by the following roll call  
 vote: 
 
 Aye: 10 -  Chairperson Hecock, Member Ahmann Smithies, Member Clark, Member Lucido, Alternate  
 Member Lederer, Member Ferons, Member Rayner, Member Weir, Member Rincon-Ibarra,  
 and Member Levine 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Member Cooper, and Alternate Member Hawkes. 
 
8.5 TAC 2022 Work Plan and Meeting Calendar (Danielle Schmitz)  (Pages  
 49-52) 
 
 Danielle Schmitz reviewed the TAC 2022 Work Plan and the 2022 Meeting Calendar and invited  
 comments from the TAC. 
 
 No comments were received from the TAC or the public. 
 
 

17



 

  

 MOTION by MEMBER LUCIDO, SECOND by MEMBER RINCON to APPROVE the 2022 TAC Work  
 Plan as presented.  Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 10 -  Chairperson Hecock, Member Ahmann Smithies, Member Clark, Member Lucido, Alternate  
 Member Lederer, Member Ferons, Member Rayner, Member Weir, Member Rincon-Ibarra,  
 and Member Levine 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Member Cooper, and Alternate Member Hawkes. 
 
8.6 NVTA Federal and State Legislative Advocacy for Calendar Year 2022 (CY  
 2022)  (Kate Miller)   (Pages 53-59) 
 
 Kate Miller reviewed the draft NVTA Federal and State Legislative Advocacy for 2022.   
 
 No comments were received from the TAC or the public. 
 
8.7 Legislative Update* (Kate Miller)   
 
 Kate Miller reviewed the federal and state legislative updates. 
 
8.8 November 17, 2021 NVTA Board Meeting and NVTA-TA Board Meeting  
 Draft Agendas* (Kate Miller) 
 
 Kate Miller reviewed the draft NVTA-TA and NVTA November 17, 2021 Board meeting agendas. 
 
9.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 None 
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
10.1  Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of December 2, 2021 and  
 Adjournment. 
 
 Meeting adjourned at 3:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Kathy Alexander, Deputy Board Secretary 

18



January 6, 2022 
TAC Agenda Item 8.1 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  Action 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Technical Advisory Committee Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Technical Advisory Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Program Planner 

(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition (NVVTC) Technical Advisory 
Committee Appointment 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) appoint a member and an alternate to 
represent the TAC on the Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition (NVVTC) Board of Directors.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition Board of Directors requested that the NVTA TAC 
appoint a delegate member to represent the TAC on the NVVTC Board.  In September 
2021 Trevor Hawkes was appointed as the delegate and Derek Rayner as the alternate, 
representing the NVTA TAC on the NVVTC Board. Unfortunately, due to scheduling 
conflicts neither of them are able to attend the NVVTC Board meetings, which are held 
the third Wednesday of each month at 9:00 am.  Therefore, the NVVTC is asking the TAC 
to appoint a new representative and alternate to serve on the Board.    

Below are the most recent delegates and alternates: 

• Joe Tagliaboschi, Town of Yountville, 2020 –2021
• Erica Ahmann Smithies, City of St. Helena, 2017-2020
• Steve Palmer, City of St. Helena, 2016-2020
• Rick Marshall, County of Napa, 2013-2016
• Debby Hight, Town of Yountville served as alternate until her retirement in 2019.
• Derek Rayner served as alternate from 2019 -2021

19

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority TAC  Agenda Item 8.1 
January 6, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact? No  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENT 

Attachment: (1) NVVTC Board Roster   

20



Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition Board Meeting
28 Voting Member 14 needed for quorum Board Member Initial

Alternate InitialLAND & AGRICULTURAL INTEREST GROUPS
Napa Valley Vintners (co-founder) Michelle Novi Jesse Ramer
Land Trust of Napa County (co-founder) Joseph M. Keebler Doug Parker
Napa Valley Grapegrowers (co-founder) Walt Brooks Jennifer Putnam
Napa County Farm Bureau Peter Nissen Ryan Klobas

PUBLIC AGENCIES
Napa Valley Transportation Authority NVTA Danielle Schmitz Diana Meehan
NVTA/TAC Public Works & Planners Trevor Hawkes Derek Rayner
ATAC Napa County Active Transportation Advisory Committee Kate Miller
Napa County Regional Park & Open Space District Tony Norris 
Napa County Law Enforcement John Blencowe
City of Vallejo/Solano County Steve Pressley 
Napa Valley College Ron Kraft Katherine Kittel

ECONOMIC INTEREST GROUPS
Visit Napa Valley Linsey Gallagher Whitney Macdonald
Napa Valley Chambers of Commerce Stephanie Iacobocci
Napa County Hispanic Chamber of Commerce
North Bay Assoc. of Realtors, Napa Chapter Carla Giffin Jim Vanoli 
Calistoga Vitality Group Gia Nikolova Bob Beck
Cycling Businesses of Napa Valley Kellie Macway

ENVIRONMENTAL INTEREST GROUPS
Sierra Club Napa Group Ellen Udoff Chris Benz 
Friends of the Napa River Barry Christian Tim Yarish

CULTURAL & COMMUNITY INTEREST GROUPS
Napa County Bicycle Coalition Patrick Band Joel King 
Health, Wellness & Medical Coalition Sonia Tolbert
Youth Development & Safety Education Coalition Casey Wedding
Runners of Napa Valley Dame' Rahal 
Rotary Clubs of Napa Valley Dwain Bitter 

OFFICERS
Executive Director (Non Voting) Philip Sales
President, Board Chair, Exec/Governance Committee Vice-Chair Chuck McMinn

*Has separate Vote if Land Trust are represented by Doug Parker
Secretary Kimberly Meredith 
Treasurer Laura Stark 

COMMITTEE CHAIRS
Legal Counsel (Non Voting) Owen Dallmeyer
Audit Committee Chair Carla Griffin*
*Has separate Vote if Realters are represented by Alternate
Finance & Investment Committee Steve Pressley*
*Has separate Vote if Vallejo/Solano Co are represented by Alternate
Marketing Committee Chair Janette Maack
Maintenance Committee Chair Mark Lucas
Program Committee Chair

ADVISORY MEMBERS NON VOTING Alternate
Arts Council Napa Valley / ACE Committee
California Department of Fish & Game (Advisory) Corinne Gray 
Caltrans District 4 (Advisory) Sergio Ruiz 
Sustainable Napa County (Advisory) Jeri Gill William Bennett
Winegrowers of Napa County (Advisory) Michelle Benvenuto 
San Francisco Bay Trail (Advisory)
Emeritus Board (Advisory) Dave Meyers
Emeritus Board (Advisory) Mark Richmond 
Emeritus Board (Advisory)

Guests and Staff (Print Name) Email Organization/Affiliation
Nancy Tennyson Staff
Marion Johnson Staff
Rebecca Kotch Ride Napa Valley

Joseph M. Keebler*

October 20, 2021

Vice President, Exec/Governance Committee Chair

ATTACHMENT 1 
TAC Agenda Item 8.1 

January 6, 2022

21

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight

dmeehan
Highlight



January 6, 2022 
TAC Agenda Item 8.2 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  Action 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
TAC Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Technical Advisory Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner 

(707) 259-8327/ Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Priority Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommend the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board accept and file the Priority Development Area 
Investment and Growth Strategy Update.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

MTC’s Resolution No. 4202 which establishes the One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) policy 
framework, requires County Transportation Agencies (CTAs) to develop a Priority 
Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy (PDA-IGS) every four years, with 
interim status reports provided two years after each update. The intent of the PDA-IGS is 
to facilitate coordination between CTAs and local jurisdictions, and better align 
transportation investments within the PDAs. The current Napa County PDA-IGS was 
updated in 2017. In 2019, MTC waived the requirement for CTAs to develop an interim 
progress report, as MTC staff satisfied the requirement through a PDA and OBAG 
Assessment report.  

The One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 3 Program Framework is scheduled to be 
adopted in January with the OBAG Cycle 3 Call for Projects following later in spring 2022. 

Staff is requesting the TAC recommend the NVTA Board accept and file the PDA-IGS 
2021 Update to fulfill the PDA-IGS requirement under Resolution 4202. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

22

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


TAC Agenda Letter Agenda Item 8.2 
Thursday, January 6, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
In May 2013, the NVTA completed the first PDA-IGS to comply with MTC’s Plan Bay Area 
SB 375 requirements.  SB 375 requires the metropolitan areas to develop strategies that  
reduce transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions and strengthens the ties 
between transportation and land-use.  MTC’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Plan 
Bay Area, supports local jurisdictions that create more housing (especially affordable 
housing) by focusing transportation investments in PDAs. MTC requires CTAs, who are 
responsible for programming transportation funds under the RTP, to provide periodic 
updates to the document.    
 
NVTA staff worked with the cities of Napa and American Canyon to review information 
and strategies, and compile a list of planned transportation investments within or 
proximate to their respective PDAs. The worksheets (Attachment 1) include transportation 
projects with the total estimated cost, committed funding and remaining funding shortfall.  
Some information regarding committed funding for projects in or proximal to the American 
Canyon PDA is still missing.  NVTA will work with American Canyon staff to complete the 
information before the document is finalized at the January Board meeting. The 
worksheets also include information on affordable housing projects and some non-
transportation related projects in or near PDAs. 
 
In addition, NVTA staff included a brief memo (Attachment 2) to accompany the 
worksheets in order to provide additional information that includes: 
 

• Recent housing, mobility and job trends 
• Planned Affordable Housing  
• Housing profile and forecasts 
• Planned transportation projects 
• Future land use development strategies in PDAs 

 
The final PDA-IGS will be taken to the January 19, 2022 NVTA Board meeting for 
approval.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  
(1) Jurisdiction PDA Worksheets 1a and 1b 
(2) Draft PDA-IGS Memo Update 
 
       

23



Transportation ATTACHMENT 1a
TAC Agenda Item 8.2

January 6, 2022

County Jurisdiction
Priority Development 
Area

Project Name (if any) Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information & 
Notes 
(need for project, etc)

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
American Canyon Multimodal 
Transit Center

Multimodal Construct Transit Center Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No $3,000,000 3,000,000 TBD

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
SR 29 Phase-1 Operational and 
Multimodal improvements

Multimodal

Operational and Multimodal 
improvements on SR 29 from 
Napa Junction Rd to American 
Canyon Rd, including signal 
technology upgrades and 
intersection reconfiguration

Planning/Alt 1&2 
in PID

Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No $30,000,000 30,000,000

SR 29- Napa 
Junction Rd to 
American Canyon 
Rd.

Will add design to FY23 
CIP

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
SR 29 Phase 2-Highway 29 
improvements-modified 
boulevard

Multimodal
6-lane modified boulevard, 
including pedestrian, transit and 
Vine Trail infrastructure

Planning/Alt 3 in 
PID

Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No $26,000,000 26,000,000

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor SR 29 Pedestrian Overcrossings Bike/Ped
Construct Three  Bike/Ped 
Crossings over SR 29

Planning/PID

Countywide 
Transportation Plan; 
Countywide Pedestrian 
Plan

No 5,000,000 5,000,000

SR 29 At Rio Del 
Mar/SR 29 @ 
American Canyon 
Rd-Third location 
TBD

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Napa Junction Rd. Intersection Auto
Add second excl. EBL and excl. 
EBR; Traffic signal relocation

Planning/PID
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 2,000,000 2,000,000
Napa Junction Road 
Intersection

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
Eucalyptus Dr./Theresa Ave. 
Intersection, Complete Streets

Auto
Extend Eucalyptus Dr. 450 ft., 
connecting SR 29; Install 
roundabout

Planning/PID
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 3,700,000 3,700,000
Eucalyptus 
Dr./Theresa Ave

Need ROW

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Rio Del Mar Auto
New major collector from SR 29 
to extension of Newell Dr. with 
railroad crossing

Design
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 10,000,000 2,000,000 Rio Del Mar

Mostly developer driven 
(Watson Ranch), but will 
need City assistance and 
funding gap unknown. 
CIP FY23

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Main Street Auto
Extend Main Street from its 
southern terminus to Antonina

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 2,000,000 0 See Description
Development driven; at 
this time no cost to City

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor West Side Connector Auto

Provide a north-south 
connection on the west side of 
Highway 29  between Green 
Island Road and the general 
vicinity of Eucalyptus  Drive

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 15,000,000 7,500,000 See Description

Development driven with 
some City cost share. 
Funding gap is 
approximate

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Newell Drive Auto

New four-lane arterial from 
Donaldson Way to Rio Del mar; 
new two lane arterial from Rio 
Del mar to SR 29; new two lane 
arterial to South kelley Rd; 
railroad overcrossing structure

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 50,000,000 50,000,000 See Description
Funding combination of 
development, County, 
State, and grants 

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Paoli Loop Road Widening Auto

Upgrade Paoli Loop Road to a 
two-lane industrial road. Widen 
shoulders and redesign the 
southwest loop radius.

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 9,000,000 9,000,000
Undetermined at this 
time with funding.

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
Green Island Rd. widening & 
reconstruction

Auto

Widen road from SR29 to 
Commerce Boulevard to 
industrial collector standards; 
widen railroad crossing to three 
lanes

Design
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

Yes 10,000,000 5,500,000

Construction in 2023. 
$5.5M grant has been 
submitted to EDA for gap 
closure

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
Highway 29/South Kelly Rd. 
Intersection

Auto
Improve intersection safety and 
operations at South Kelly Road

Design
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 4,000,000 4,000,000

Development driven with 
a significant share coming 
from Development. CIP in 
FY23

24



Transportation ATTACHMENT 1a
TAC Agenda Item 8.2

January 6, 2022

County Jurisdiction
Priority Development 
Area

Project Name (if any) Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information & 
Notes 
(need for project, etc)

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Eucalyptus Drive Auto

Realign Eucalyptus Drive from 
Theresa Road to intersect with 
Hwy 29; construct auxiliary lane 
southbound on Hwy 29 between 
Napa Jct Rd. and Rio Del Mar.

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No 7,000,000 7,000,000 Need ROW

Eucalyptus Rd. West of Theresa 
Ave

Auto
Improve Eucalyptus Dr. from 
Wetlands Edge Rd. to SR 29 as 
two-lane collector

Planning No TBD TBD

Wilson Rd. Extension Auto
Extend Wilson Rd. from Melvin 
Rd. to Broadway

Planning No TBD TBD

Napa Junction Rd. Extension Auto
Extend Napa Junction Rd. 
between Theresa to Hess Dr.

Planning No TBD TBD Development Driven

Highway 29 Signal ATS Install Advance Traffic Signal Planning/PID No TBD TBD

Annual Pedestrian 
Improvement Project

Ped

Design for extending sidewalk 
westerly on Rio Del Mar from SR 
29 to Cassayre; sidewalk along 
SR 29 from Rio Del Mar to 
Donaldson Way and sidewalk 
along Donaldson Way from SR 
29 to James Road.

Planning No TBD TBD

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Eucalyptus Drive Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path 
(1.04mi.)-Bay Area Ridge Trail

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Main Street Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (.62 mi) 
Vine Trail-Newell Dr. Extension

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Kimberly Dr. Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path(.32 mi) 
Bay Trail-Kimberly Segment

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Carragena-Via Bellagio Bike /Ped Class I-Shared Use Path (.40 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Commerce Blvd Bike/Ped Class I Shared Use Path (.27mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below 0 Developer driven

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Green Island Rd. Bike/Ped Class I Shared Use Path (.33mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Hess Rd. Bike/Ped Class I Shared Use Path (.83 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor River Trail Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (1.06 
mi)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor S. Kelly Rd. Bike/Ped Class I Shared Use Path (.20 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor SR 29 Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (1.15 
mi)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor SR 29 Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (5.21 
mi)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor SR 29 Connector Bike/Ped Class I Shared Use Path (.06) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Broadway Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (Vine 
Trail) (.017 mi)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Devlin Rd. Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (1.62 mi. 
Vine Trail)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

25



Transportation ATTACHMENT 1a
TAC Agenda Item 8.2

January 6, 2022

County Jurisdiction
Priority Development 
Area

Project Name (if any) Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information & 
Notes 
(need for project, etc)

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Newell Rd. Extension Bike/Ped
Class I Shared Use Path (1.06 mi. 
Vine Trail

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No 17,000,000 15,830,000

All Class I Facilities listed. 
Based on high cost/mi 
est. for Class I facilities in 
Countywide Bicycle Plan 
(excluding ROW)

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor American Canyon Road Bike
Class IV-Separated Bike Plan 
(.85)

Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No 637,000 637,000

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor American Canyon Road Bike Class II Bike Lane (.42 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Commerce Blvd Bike Class II Bike Lane (.74 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Donaldson Way Bike Class II Bike Lane (.30 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Green Island Rd. Bike Class II Bike Lane (.25 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Hanna St. Bike Class II Bike Lane (.37 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Lombard Rd Bike Class II Bike Lane (.34 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Mezzetta Ct. Bike Class II Bike Lane (.20) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Napa Junction Rd. Bike Class II Bike Lane (.37 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No see below see below

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Rio Del Mar Bike Class II Bike Lane (1.00 mi) Planning Countywide Bicycle Plan No 758,100 758,000

Includes estimated cost 
for all Class II listed based 
on high cost/mi. est. in 
Countywide Bicycle Plan 
for Class II facilities. 
(excluding ROW)

Napa
American 
Canyon/Caltrans/NVTA

Highway 29 Corridor Express Bus Enhancements Transit
13.5 mi. on SR 29, queue jumps, 
bus on shoulder

Planning SR 29 CMCP N/A $25,000,000 $25,000,000

SR 29 between City 
of Napa and 
American Canyon 
Rd.

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Multimodal Transit/Rail Station Transit
Multimodal transit station to 
accommodate reail and 
east/west expansion

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

No $5,000,000 $5,000,000
TBD-Green Island 
Road or

Napa American Canyon Highway 29 Corridor
Melvin Rd. Multimodal 
Improvements

Multimodal
Sidewalk gap closure, traffic 
calming, bike?, lighting, Transit

Planning
Broadway District 
Specific Plan

No $1,000,000 1,000,000
Cassayare to 
Wilson Way 

Transportation 
improvement serving 66 
unit (Napa Cove) 
affordable housing-
Parallel rd.

26



Affordable Housing

County Jurisdiction
Priority Development 
Area

Project Name, if known Project Status/Stage
Approximate 
# total units

Approximate # 
of deed-
restricted units

Street Address or 
Approximate Location

Developer (leave blank if 
unknown or not disclosable)

If known, project 
cost

If known, 
funding gap

Project Type 
(Preservation or 
New Construction)

Additional 
Information & Notes 
(AMI levels; 
rental/ownership; 
target populations

Napa American Canyon Broadway District PDA The Residences at Napa Junction Preapplication 452 46 680 Napa Junction Road
American Canyon Ventures LLC - 
86-3990238

New construction
46 Very low  income 
100 % Rental

Napa American Canyon Broadway District PDA Napa Cove (PL21-0027) Entitlement in Process 66 66 3805 Broadway CRP Affordable Housing $36,446,000 New construction

13 @ 30% AMI
13 @ 40% AMI
39 @ 60% AMI
100 % Rental

Napa American Canyon Broadway District PDA Valley View Completed 70 70 1 Natalie Lane Sattelite Affordable  Housing $26,600,000 New construction
70 @ 60% AMI
100% Rental

Napa American Canyon Broadway District PDA The Village at Vintage Ranch Completed 159 16 923 Hudson Ln Advance Building Solutions New construction
8 Low income
8 Very low  income 
100 % Rental

Napa American Canyon Oat Hill Residential Approved 291 0
SW Hess Drive/ Napa 
Junction Road

Hess Development New construction

Napa American Canyon Broadway District PDA Broadway District Specific Plan Planned 682

See  Napa Cove 
and Inclusionary 
units on other 
projects 

Multiple Property Owners New construction
Units shown are 
remaining in Specific 
Plan

Napa American Canyon Watson Ranch Specific Plan Planned 1253
See Lemos 
Pointe Below

East of Union Pacific 
Railroad, south of Watson 
Lane 

McGrath Properties New construction

Napa American Canyon Lot 10 Approved 219 n
North terminus future 
Rolling Hills Drive at Rio Del 
Mar East 

D.R. Horton New construction

Napa American Canyon Lot 14 Approved 95 0
North terminus 
Summerwood Drive 

D.R. Horton New construction

Napa American Canyon Lemos Pointe Approved 186 186
Northeast corner of Union 
Pacific Railroad and future 
Rio Del Mar East 

The Pacific Companies $61,350,000 New construction

19 @ 30% AMI
28 @ 40% AMI
75 @ 50% AMI
62 @ 60% AMI
2 @ 120% AMI
100 % Rental

27



Infrastructure (Non-transport)

County Jurisdiction Priority Development Area Project Name (if any) Type of Infrastructure Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information 
& Notes (need for 
project, etc)

28



Transit

County Jurisdiction
Priority 
Development 
Area

Project Name (if 
any)

Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA 
Plan? (If so, name 
of plan)

Included in 
CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, 
link to 
relevant 
document 
(e.g. PDA 
Plan, CIP)

Additional 
Information 
& Notes 
(need for 
project, etc)

Napa American 
Canyon

Highway 29 
Corridor

Electric Bus 
Charging 
Infrastructure

Charging/            
Transit

Install electric 
charging 
infrastructure for 
transit-Countywide

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation 
Plan

N/A $4,000,000 4,000,000$     Multiple/   
Countywide

https://issuu.
com/nvta19/
docs/draft_n
vta_ctp?fr=s
NDE0ZTM2M
TI1MjI

29

https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI


Transportation ATTACHMENT 1.b
TAC  Agenda Item 8.2

January 6, 2022

County Jurisdiction Priority Development Area Project Name (if any) Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information & Notes 
(need for project, etc)

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Five-Way Intersection 
Modification

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct intersection 
improvements at the 
intersection of Silverado 
Trail/Third Street/Coombsville 
Road/East Avenue

Planning/ 
Preliminary 
Design

Napa County Priority 
Development Area (PDA) 
Investment and Growth 
Strategy Update

Yes $15,600,000 $5,600,000 

Intersection of 
Silverado Trail/Third 
Street/Coombsville 
Road/East Avenue

Napa PDA Investmen        
Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan and Pedestrian 
Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Soscol Gap Vine Trail
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct Class 1 bicycle facility 
adjacent to Soscol Avenue 
between Vallejo Street and 
Third Street

In Construction

Napa County Priority 
Development Area (PDA) 
Investment and Growth 
Strategy Update

Yes $1,837,000 $0 

Soscol Avenue 
between Vallejo 
Street and Third 
Street

Napa PDA Investmen        
Project included in the Bicycle Plan. 
Class I facility Gap Closure-Napa 
Valley Vine Trail

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Oxbow Preserve 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Bridge

Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct a bicycle/pedestrian 
bridge from the Oxbow Preserve 
over the Napa River to the River 
Trail

Planning No No $1,250,000 $1,250,000 

Over the Napa River 
from the Oxbow 
Preserve to the River 
Trail

Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan, Pedestrian 
Plan, and Bicycle Plan.

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Railroad Crossing 
Upgrades

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Upgrade all railroad crossings 
citywide to concrete panels with 
flangeway fillers (multiple 
railroad crossings located within 
the PDA)

Planning No No $2,500,000 $2,500,000 

Within the PDA there 
are railroad crossings 
on Soscol Avenue, 
First Street and Third 
Street

Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan and Pedestrian 
Plan. Safety improvement project

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Oxbow Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Crossing

Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct a bicycle/pedestrian 
bridge over the Napa River 
between 3rd Street and 1st 
Street adjacent to the existing 
railroad bridge

Planning No No $5,000,000 $5,000,000 
Over the Napa River 
between 3rd Street 
and 1st Street

Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan and Bicycle 
Plan.  Provides safe bike/ped 
connection to Transit and 
downtown core (via Oxbow 
commons)/Oxbow District

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Shetler Avenue Sidewalks Pedestrian

Construct sidewalks along 
Shetler Avenue where gaps exist 
(a portion of Shetler Avenue is 
located with the PDA, and 
Shetler provides connection of 
residential/school properties 
to/from the PDA)

Planning No No $2,500,000 $2,500,000 Shetler Avenue
Project included in the Pedestrian 
Plan. Supports proposed affordable 
housing project

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Second Street Bulbouts Pedestrian
Construct bulbouts at Second 
Street/School Street and Second 
Street/Franklin Street 

Planning No No $250,000 $250,000 

Second 
Street/Franklin Street 
intersection and 
Second Street/School 
Street intersection

Project included in the Pedestrian 
Plan. Improves pedestrian safety in 
the downtown core

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Imola Corridor Complete 
Streets Improvements - 
Center Segment

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct multi-modal complete 
streets improvements along 
Imola Avenue (SR121) between 
Jefferson Street and Soscol 
Avenue (a portion of the Imola 
Avenue - Center Segment is 
located within the PDA, and 
Imola Avenue provides direct 
access to/from the PDA)

Planning No No $5,740,000 $1,885,000 

Imola Avenue (SR121) 
between Jefferson 
Street and Soscol 
Avenue

Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan, Pedestrian Plan 
and Bicycle Plan; The Imola Avenue 
Corridor Complete Street 
Improvement Plan studied the 
corridor and recommended 
improvements; Caltrans has 
identified $3,855,000 in  Complete 
Streets SHOPP Reserve (one-time 
source) funding for use on SR121, 
Imola Corridor- Center Segment 
(project funding shortfall may be 
higher than listed depending on 
amount used on the Center 
Segment)

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Imola Corridor Complete 
Streets Improvements - 
East segment

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct of multi-modal 
complete streets improvements 
along Imola Avenue between 
Soscol Avenue and 4th Avenue 
(a portion of the Imola Avenue - 
East Segment is located within 
the PDA, and Imola Avenue 
provides direct access to/from 
the PDA)

Planning No No $5,100,000 $5,100,000 

Imola Avenue 
between Soscol 
Avenue and 4th 
Avenue (Imola 
Corridor East 
Segment)

Project included in the Countywide 
Transportation Plan, Pedestrian Plan 
and Bicycle Plan; The Imola Avenue 
Corridor Complete Street 
Improvement Plan studied the 
corridor and recommended 
improvements

30

https://www.nvta.ca.gov/sites/default/files/Napa%20PDA%20Investment%20and%20Growth%20Strategy%20Update%20May%202017_Final.pdf
https://www.nvta.ca.gov/sites/default/files/Napa%20PDA%20Investment%20and%20Growth%20Strategy%20Update%20May%202017_Final.pdf


Transportation ATTACHMENT 1.b
TAC  Agenda Item 8.2

January 6, 2022

County Jurisdiction Priority Development Area Project Name (if any) Mode(s) Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA Plan? 
(If so, name of plan)

Included 
in CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional Information & Notes 
(need for project, etc)

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Soscol Avenue/Silverado 
Trail Intersection 
Modification

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct intersection 
improvements at the 
intersection of Soscol 
Avenue/Silverado Trail

Planning No No $1,000,000 $1,000,000 
Intersection of Soscol 
Avenue/Silverado Trail

Project needed based on Master 
Plan Traffic Impact Analysis

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Soscol Avenue/Imola 
Avenue Intersection 
Modification

Vehicle/ 
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct intersection 
improvements at the 
intersection of Soscol 
Avenue/Imola Avenue

Planning No Yes $1,500,000 $1,050,000 
Intersection of Soscol 
Avenue/Imola Avenue

450,000

Project needed based on Master 
Plan Traffic Impact Analysis and the 
Imola Avenue Corridor Complete 
Streets Improvement Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Downtown Class I Paths - 
multiple connections 
(Napa Creek Connector 
Trail; Brown St Corridor; 
Riverfront Promenade 
Underpass)

Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct the Class 1 path 
connections in the Downtown 
core area that are listed in the 
City of Napa Bicycle Plan

Planning No No $2,500,000 $2,500,000 
Downtown Napa - 
multiple locations

Individual Projects included in the 
Bicycle Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Tulocay Creek Trail
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct Class 1 path along the 
north bank of Tulocay Creek 
between Soscol Avenue and the 
Vine Trail

Planning No No $750,000 $750,000 

North bank of Tulocay 
Creek between Soscol 
Avenue and the Vine 
Trail

Project included in the Bicycle Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

River Trail East
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct Class 1 path along the 
east side of the Napa River from 
the Oxbow Preserve to First 
Street

Planning No No $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

East side of the Napa 
River from the Oxbow 
Preserve to First 
Street

Project included in the Bicycle Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

River Trail West
Bicycle/ 
Pedestrian

Construct the missing segments 
of Class 1 path along the west 
side of the Napa River from 
Lincoln Avenue to the Railroad 
Bridge (near Water Street)

Planning No No $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

West side of the Napa 
River from Lincoln 
Avenue to the 
Railroad Bridge (near 
Water Street)

Project included in the Bicycle Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Class II bike lanes within 
the PDA - multiple 
locations

Bicycle

Construct Class II bike lanes 
called out in the Countywide 
Bicycle Plan and City of Napa 
Bicycle Plan that are located 
within the PDA

Planning No No $600,000 $600,000 

Multiple locations (1st 
St, 3rd St, Coombs St, 
Silverado Trail, Sousa 
Ln)

Individual Projects included in the 
Bicycle Plan

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Class III bike routes within 
the PDA - multiple 
locations 

Bicycle

Construct Class III bike routes 
called out in the Countywide 
Bicycle Plan and City of Napa 
Bicycle Plan that are located 
within the PDA

Planning No No $450,000 $450,000 

Multiple locations (1st 
St, Burnell St-8th St, 
Clay St-Pearl St, 
Clinton St, Division St-
Franklin St, Juarez St, 
Kansas Ave, McKinstry 
St, Shetler Ave)

Individual Projects included in the 
Bicycle Plan

Napa
Napa Valley 
College 
(State)

Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor(adjacent)

Napa Valley College 
Transfer Station

Transit
Construct Transfer Center on 
the Napa Valley College Campus

Planning
Countywide 
Transportation Plan

N/A $2,000,000.00 $2,000,000

Napa Valley College, 
SR 221/121 at the 
south edge of the 
Downtown Napa 
Soscol Corridor PDA

https://issuu.com/n
vta19/docs/draft_nv
ta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZT
M2MTI1MjI

31

https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI


Affordable Housing

County Jurisdiction
Priority Development 
Area

Project Name, if 
known Project Status/Stage

Approximate 
# total units

Approximate # 
of deed-
restricted units

Street Address or 
Approximate Location

Developer (leave blank if 
unknown or not 
disclosable)

If known, project 
cost

If known, 
funding gap

Project Type 
(Preservation or 
New 
Construction)

Additional 
Information & Notes 
(AMI levels; 
rental/ownership; 
target populations

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and 
Soscol Gateway Corridor Stoddard West Completed 11/2019 50 49 345 Gasser Drive, Napa Stoddard Housing L.P. Unknown None

New 
Construction

30-60% AMI; rental; 1 
unit set-aside for 
homeless

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and 
Soscol Gateway Corridor Monarch Landing

Entitled - applying for 
funding 77 76 1000 Shetler Ave., Napa

Napa Valley Community 
Housing                   72,667,000      72,667,000 

New 
Construction

60% AMI & below; 
rental

Napa City of Napa

(Adjacent to) Downtown 
Napa and Soscol Gateway 
Corridor Wine Valley Lodge Applying for funding 55 54 200 S. Coombs, Napa

Burbank Housing 
Development 
Corporation 20,702,220      13,552,220 

Repurpose of 
commercial 
buildings into 
housing

30% or below AMI; 
rental; supportive 
housing for homeless

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and 
Soscol Gateway Corridor

Bridgeview Apartments 
Expansion Entitled 16 11

122 Brown St./151 
Riverside Drive, Napa

Second Bridgeview 
Apartments Associates Unknown Unknown

New 
Construction

50-80% AMI; rental; 
expansion of 
Bridgeview 
Apartments with 
some of affordable 
units located within 
existing portion of 
project

Napa City of Napa

Proximal to Downtown 
Napa and Soscol Gatweay 
Corridor (1.4Mi)

Manzanita, AHSC 
Project

Near complete. 
Temporary 
Occupancy Permit 51

2951 Soscol Avenue/Old 
Soscol Way

Satellite Affordable 
Housing Associates of 
Berkeley 25,000,000

New 
Construction

Napa City of Napa

Proximal to Downtown 
Napa and Soscol Gatweay 
Corridor 

Napa Valley College 
Campus Housing

Pre-development 
Phase 220

2277 Napa/Vallejo Highway 
(SR221/121 and Imola Ave)

Martin Group 
Development 83,300,000

New 
Construction

City of Napa
Downtown Napa and 
Soscol Gateway Corridor

Wine Train Workforce 
Housing

Pre-development 
Phase 55

Soscol Ave between 3rd. St. 
and 6th St. Wine Train/Greg Brun ?

New 
Construction

32



Infrastructure (Non-transport)

County Jurisdiction Priority Development Area

Project Name (if any) Type of Infrastructure Description
Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA 
Plan? (If so, name 
of plan)

Included in 
CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to 
relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional 
Information & 
Notes (need for 
project, etc)

Napa City of Napa
Downtown Napa and Soscol 
Gateway Corridor

Soscol Avenue Median 
Landscaping

Median landscaping

Provide landscaping to the 
center medians along Soscol 
Avenue between Sousa Lane 
and Silverado Trail

Planning No No $750,000 $750,000 

Soscol Avenue 
between Sousa 
Lane and 
Silverado Trail

Napa City of Napa
Proximal to Downtown Napa 
and Soscol Gateway

City of Napa Gateway 
Enhancement Project

Median landscaping
Provide enhancements citywide 
on arterials at city gateways

Planning and 
Design

No Yes $800,000  $  114,000.00 

Imola Corridor 
between 
Jefferson and 
Coombs St.

33



Transit

County Jurisdiction

Priority 
Development 
Area

Project Name 
(if any)

Type of 
Infrastructure Description

Project 
Status/Stage

Identified in PDA 
Plan? (If so, 
name of plan)

Included in 
CIP?

Approximate 
Cost

Approximate 
Funding Gap

Approximate 
Location

If available, link to relevant document 
(e.g. PDA Plan, CIP)

Additional 
Information & 
Notes (need for 
project, etc)

Napa City of Napa

Downtown 
Napa Soscol 
Gateway 
Corridor

Electric Bus 
Charging 
Infrastructure Charging/Transit

Install electric 
charging 
infrastructure 
for transit-
Countywide Planning

Countywide 
Transportation 
Plan N/A $4,000,000 4,000,000$      

Multiple/County
wide

https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_n
vta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI

34

https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI
https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp?fr=sNDE0ZTM2MTI1MjI


ATTACHMENT 2 
TAC Agenda Item 8.2 

January 6, 2022  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PDA-IGS Draft Status Update 
December 15, 2021 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 
 

1. Overview 
 

The Priority Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy identifies Priority 
Development Areas (PDAs) within Napa County to focus transportation investments 
received through the One Bay Area Grant Program (OBAG) program. The OBAG 
program now entering its third cycle, is the federal transportation funding program 
dedicated to support the implementation of Plan Bay Area 2050 
(https://www.planbayarea.org/), which encompasses the region’s recently updated 
Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS).  OBAG 3 will cover the four-year period from 
FY 2023-24 to FY 2026-27 and will set the goals and priorities for sustainable growth in 
the region. This memorandum will provide an update on Napa County’s two Priority 
Development Areas (PDAs) to help inform regional funding policies and priorities in 
preparation for OBAG 3.  

To meet the SCS goals, and as a requirement for receiving federal highway funds under 
OBAG 3,  the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)  requires each County 
Transportation Agency (CTA)  to create and periodically update a PDA Investment and 
Growth Strategy (PDA-IGS).  NVTA is the CTA for Napa County and maintains the 
PDA-IGS.  The PDA-IGS is a living document, and will be updated periodically to 
include new policies, growth strategies, and new data as needed.   

PDAs are locally identified areas that can accommodate future housing, especially 
affordable housing along with employment growth near public transportation.  The 
development of PDAs can reduce traffic congestion and encourage more sustainable 
forms of transportation such as transit, walking, and biking.  With growing populations 
and worsening traffic conditions along with constrained natural and urban environments, 
the need to improve conditions for future generations has become a priority.  The shift 
to more sustainable community developments supported by these factors along with 
mandates by California State laws, in particular AB 321, SB 3752, and most recently SB 
7433.  These laws require that Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) and other 
regional agencies develop and periodically update a Sustainable Communities Strategy 
as part of the long range planning process by considering the impacts of land use and 
transportation.   

The purpose of a PDA-IGS is to ensure that local transportation agencies like NVTA 
have a transportation project priority-setting process for OBAG 3 funding that 
encourages development in the region’s PDAs, and supports reaching the goals of Plan 
Bay Area 2050. 

Strategies are intended to facilitate coordination between CTAs and local jurisdictions 
with PDAs to strengthen the alignment of transportation investments and local planning.  
These strategies will help inform the next funding program cycle under OBAG 3, by 

                                                           
1 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=200520060AB32 
2 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=200720080SB375 
3 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201320140SB743 

37

https://www.planbayarea.org/


identifying challenges, opportunities and needs unique to Napa County’s PDAs.  The 
current PDA-IGS was adopted in May 2017, and there have not been significant 
changes in the status of the PDAs since the last update.  In 2019, the MTC/ABAG 
waived the requirement for CTAs to develop an interim progress report, as MTC/ABAG 
staff would satisfy the requirement through the PDA and OBAG Assessment Project.  
This status update will address any recent housing and mobility trends, planned 
transportation projects and any new planned affordable housing projects. 
 
 

2. NAPA COUNTY PDAs 
 

 
Napa County has two identified PDAs (TABLE 1).  One in the City of American Canyon 
along the SR 29 Corridor (FIGURE 1), and one in the City of Napa along the Downtown 
and Soscol Gateway Corridor (FIGURE 2).  Both PDAs are located in the incorporated 
areas in the southern portion of the county where much of the local growth is taking 
place.  This concentrated growth in the county’s two largest incorporated cities is part of 
the local strategy to preserve the Priority Conservation Areas (PCA) (FIGURE 3) in the 
unincorporated portions of the county, predominately in the north.   
 
 
 
TABLE 1: Napa County PDAs 
 

PDA Name PDA Description PDA 
Designation 

Downtown 
Napa – 
Soscol 
Gateway 
Corridor  

Approximately 585 acres located in downtown 
Napa boarded by Polk, Clinton, and Caymus 
Streets to the north, Jefferson Street to the west, 
Division Street to the south and then extends east 
across the Napa River to Silverado Trail and south 
to Imola Avenue. 

Transit 
Neighborhood 

 

American 
Canyon Hwy 
29 Corridor  

Approximately 225 acres located on the Hwy 29 
corridor; geographic boundaries are generally 
Green Island Road on the north, James Road on 
the west, the railroad tracks on the east, and the 
City of Vallejo on the south. 

Mixed Use 
Corridor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
FIGURE 1:  City of American Canyon SR 29 Corridor PDA Boundary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 
FIGURE 2: City of Napa Downtown and Soscol Gateway Corridor PDA Boundary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 
FIGURE 3: Napa County Priority Conservation Area Map and Map Key 

 

41



 

3. Status of Current Housing & Jobs Creation in Napa County PDAs 

The City of American Canyon has experienced significant growth in the last few years, 
in both housing and industrial development, which will create a number of jobs in the 
south portion of the county.  Several housing developments are planned, in or proximal 
to the Highway 29 Corridor PDA, including some affordable units. The American 
Canyon Economic Development Department reported 86 affordable units completed 
with an additional 298 planned in and in various stages of approval (Attachment 1-City 
of American Canyon PDA Worksheet). A number of industrial developments are also 
complete with additional development being planned along the north end of the corridor. 
Many of these developments will create jobs in the industrial sector, primarily 
warehousing, shipping and some in small manufacturing.   

42



Several affordable housing developments are now either complete, under construction 
or proposed for construction in the next few years within both PDAs (Table 2).  
According to the City of Napa Economic Development Department (Attachment 2), 101 
affordable housing units in, or proximal to the PDA are completed, with 148 units 
planned between 2017 to present. Two additional projects, although not within the City 
of Napa PDA are significant and proximal, the Manzanita Project (51) which is just 1.4 
miles outside the PDA, and the Napa Valley College Campus housing project (220 
units), which is along the southern border of the PDA.  Additional commercial/retail/hotel 
development within the Downtown Napa Soscol Gateway Corridor PDA will bring jobs, 
albeit lower wage, to the area.  

TABLE 2: Planned Affordable Housing (In or proximal to PDA’s 2017-2021) 
 

Jurisdiction PDA Project  Name Status Units 

City of Napa Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor Stoddard West Complete 50 

City of Napa Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor Monarch Landing Entitled/Applying for 

funding 77 

City of Napa Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor 

Wine Valley 
Lodge 

Applying for 
Funding 55 

City of Napa Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor 

Bridgeview 
Apartments 
Expansion 

Entitled 16 

City of Napa 
Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor 
(proximal) 

Manzanita AHSC 
Project Near Complete 51 

City of Napa 
Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway 
Corridor(adjacent) 

Napa Valley 
College-Campus 
Housing 

Pre-Development 220 

City of Napa Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor 

Wine Train 
Workforce 
Housing 

Pre-Development 55 

City of American 
Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Valley View Completed 70 

City of American 
Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Village at Vintage 

Ranch Completed 16 

City of American 
Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Residences at 

Napa Junction Pre-Application 46 

City of American 
Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Napa Cove Entitlement in 

process 66 

City of American 
Canyon Highway 29 Corridor Lemos Pointe Approved 186 

Total Affordable Units  908 

 

43



 
Housing Profile and Forecasts 
 
Napa County is one of the nation’s most popular tourist destinations and coupled with 
minimal new housing starts, Napa County has much higher housing costs than state 
and national averages. The Agricultural Preserve has placed a premium on land use 
and housing prices which have only been compounded by the Covid-19 Pandemic, and 
the desire for higher wage workers to live outside urban areas while working remotely.  
The average housing price in Napa County increased 24% from $699,000 in 2019 to 
$867,000 in 2020.4   
 
Strategies for improving low-median income housing 
 
Napa County’s predominate workforce is in the lower wage service industry sectors.  
Building affordable housing for lower income workers and diversifying Napa’s economic 
base to offer higher paying jobs are two solutions to the jobs and housing imbalance. 
While there are significant challenges with these solutions, such as higher financial 
rewards for developers building higher cost housing or commercial development than 
affordable housing, the Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA-Table 3) has brought 
significant focus on the housing crisis, especially to meet the needs of homeless and 
low-income workers.  The mandate to preserve agricultural space and the desire to 
promote the industry it supports, coupled with the lack of adequate infrastructure, and 
the threat of climate related disasters, renders the task to meet housing allocations, 
particularly in the unincorporated areas, an exceptional challenge. 
 
TABLE 3: Regional Housing Needs Allocation 2023-20315 
 

Jurisdiction Very Low 
Income (<50% 
of Area Median 

Income) 

Low Income 
(50-80% of 

Area Median 
Income 

Moderate 
Income (80-
120% of Area 

Median Income) 

Above Moderate 
Income (>120% of 
Area Median Income 

Totals 

American 
Canyon 112 65 75 194 446 
Napa 504 291 319 825 1939 
Yountville 19 11 12 30 72 
St. Helena 103 59 26 66 254 
Calistoga 31 19 19 50 119 
Unincorporated 
Napa 369 213 120 312 

           
1014 

TOTALS 1138 658 571 1477 3844 
 
 
Creating a more diverse economy is also challenging.  Land in Napa County is 
expensive and Napa’s rural, remote location to other large cities in the central core of 
                                                           
4 https://napavalleyregister.com/news/local/napa-county-home-price-hits-all-time-median-high-with-flood-of-
new-buyers-from/article_e331afff-9ba4-56dc-89d7-d7823ad76c5b.html 
5 https://abag.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-12/proposed%20Final_RHNA_Allocation_Report_2023-
2031.pdf 

44



the Bay Area make it one of the most expensive counties to locate businesses.  That 
said, Napa has a college near the Downtown Napa Soscol Gateway PDA that can foster 
entrepreneurial opportunities if the transportation infrastructure is available to support a 
new industry. Revitalizing the existing office parks and industrial spaces in the south 
portion of the county into tech incubators, biotech firms, manufacturing plants and 
distribution centers could all increase job wages that would help improve home 
affordability. 
 
Jobs in Napa County 
 
This description from the Napa County General plan economic development describes 
drivers of the local economy, and the job base that supports it:  
 
Napa County’s economy is based on agriculture, and in particular, a highly specialized 
form of agriculture: grape-growing and wine-making.  In addition, the county’s wineries 
draw visitors from California and beyond, creating a strong secondary economy in the 
form of tourism and hospitality.    
 
The wine and tourism industries alone account for nearly 40% of the local labor force.  
Government, healthcare, education, construction and retail make up the balance of 
Napa’s economy and are necessary to support these industries and the people who live 
and work in Napa County.  
 
The majority of the job growth in Napa County is predicted to take place within or 
proximate to the two Napa County PDAs as shown in Table 4 below.  The California 
Employment Development Division reported that there were 72,900 jobs in Napa 
County in June 2020, with almost a third of these jobs in leisure, hospitality and 
manufacturing (Winemaking is classified by the Bureau of Labor Statistics as 
manufacturing).  
 
TABLE 4: Job Growth by PDA and Jurisdiction-Napa County (Plan Bay Area 2050) 
 

Napa County JOBS 
 2010 2040 2010-2040 % Growth 
Jurisdiction or Area 
Name 

Place Type  

American Canyon 
Highway 29 Corridor 

 
Mixed Use Corridor 

2,920 4,160 1,240 
42% 

1,280 2,100 810 
Calistoga 2,220 2,640 420 19% 
Napa 
Downtown Napa 
Soscol Gateway Corridor 

 
Rural Town Center 
Rural Corridor 

33,950 
9,870 
1,080 

44,520 
11,620 

1,950 

10,570 
1,750 

870 
31% 

St. Helena 5,340 6,230 890 17% 
Yountville 1,600 1,980 380 24% 
Napa County Unincorporated 24,630 30,000 5,380 22% 

45



 
Job growth in lower-wage service industry sectors and minimal new housing starts have 
resulted in a much higher cost for housing than state and national averages. These 
factors, coupled with land preservation under the Agricultural Preserve have placed a 
premium on land value, making it challenging to build housing to accommodate lower- 
and moderate-income workers.  This forces a large number of workers to commute from 
adjacent counties where housing costs are lower, increasing the stress on the 
transportation system. The Association of Bay Area Governments estimates that 31,000 
jobs in Napa County are occupied by workers from outside of Napa County.6 
 

4. Planned Transportation Projects 
 
NVTA updated its Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP), Advancing Mobility 2045, 
which was adopted in May 2021. NVTA separates proposed projects into two 
categories; constrained and unconstrained.  This allows projects to move forward within 
the planning period if additional funds are identified. The projects within this plan will be 
considered for submission under OBAG 3.  
 
The CTP includes a wide array of transportation projects and programs with a series of 
performance metrics (reliant on readily available data) designed to measure 
performance under six categories: 

1. Equity 
2. Safety 
3. Congestion Relief 
4. Economic Sustainability 
5. Sustainability 
6. Maintenance and Preservation 

 
By tracking performance of local transportation investments, NVTA will be able to 
determine the effectiveness of various project types in order to evaluate whether the 
most pressing needs of the transportation system identified in the CTP are improving: 
 

• Congestion relief 
• Improved traffic safety 
• More active transportation infrastructure 
• More reliable and frequent bus service 
• Maintenance and repair of the existing transportation system 

 
 
NVTA staff worked with the City of Napa and City of American Canyon staff to provide a 
list of transportation and non-transportation related projects that are in, or proximate to 
each of the Napa County PDAs. Transportation project amounts and funding shortfalls 
are shown in Table 5. Additional project information, non-transportation related projects 
are included in PDA worksheets in Attachments 1 and 2.   

                                                           
6 Napa Countywide Transportation Plan -  Advancing Mobility 2045 https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp  

46

https://issuu.com/nvta19/docs/draft_nvta_ctp


 
The City of Napa listed 17 transportation projects in, or proximal to its PDA totaling and 
estimated $49,577,000 with a $16,142,000 funding shortfall. Non-transportation related 
projects (2) consisting of urban greening along major corridors have an estimated 
project cost of $1,550,000 with an $864,000 funding gap. 
 
The City of American Canyon has 47 listed transportation projects in, or proximal to its 
PDA, totaling an estimated $226,095,000. This excludes five projects that currently 
have no estimates. The shortfall is using the full estimated amount currently known. 
 
TABLE 5: PDA Total Transportation Project Estimates and Funding Shortfalls 
 

PDA Approximate Total 
Cost  

Committed Funds Funding Shortfall 

Downtown Napa 
Soscol Gateway 
Corridor 

$51,577,000* $35,435,000* $16,142,000 

Highway 29 
Corridor 

$226,095,000 
 

XX,XXX,XXX $226,095,000 

 TOTALS $242,237,000** 
*Includes $2M for NVC Transit Transfer Station 
**Includes $4M for Countywide Electric Charging for Transit-some of which may be in/proximal to PDAs 
and will serve transit in the PDAs-shown on separate tab on both worksheets. 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Future of  PDAs in Napa County 
 
Future land use development strategies in the PDAs is as follows:  
 

• Continued housing growth and multimodal transportation improvements to 
support connectivity, safety and mobility. 

• Consider expanding the southern end of the Downtown Napa Soscol 
Gateway Corridor PDA to the west along the Imola Corridor which has 
several planned complete streets improvements and potential for new 
economic development in identified opportunity zones.7 

• Infill and adaptive reuse for more vibrant utilization of commercial zones 
within in the PDAs. 

• Continuation of programs adapted to support business and the community 
during the pandemic-parklets, streateries and street closures-pedestrian 
friendly zones. 

• Potential for travel demand programs to support reduction of VMT through 
incentivizing rideshare, transit and active modes of transportation. 

                                                           
7 https://www.imolacorridorplan.org/ 

47



• Improved access and mobility through seamless linking of modes - transit, 
first/last mile connections, mobility hubs, parking programs, bike, scooter 
and car share.  

• Consideration of Pro-Housing designation to increase grant funding 
opportunities.8 

• Support Anti-Displacement Strategies: 
i. Produce enough housing for residents at all income levels. 
ii. Preserve the affordable housing that already exists. 
iii. Protect current residents from displacement where neighborhoods 

are changing rapidly. 
iv. Provide sufficient and affordable commercial space to support 

new, small and locally owned businesses. 
• Promote policies that support making land use and transportation 

investments within PDAs. 
• Pivot and adjust when targets are not being met to improve outcomes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
8 https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/prohousing/index.shtml 

48



January 6, 2021 
TAC Agenda Item 8.3 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Technical Advisory Committee Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Technical Advisory Committee 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Roxanna Moradi 

(707) 259-8781 / Email: rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2021-22 Year-To-Date Financial Update and April – June 
Sales Tax Update 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the TAC review a report on Measure T sales tax revenues provided by the Auditor-
Controller which provides the actual revenues-to-date compared to projections for FY 
2021-22 (FY22). 

BACKGROUND 

The Background and Discussion section of this memo presents revenues received year-
to-date compared to projections and the five (5) year revenue outlook.  Additionally, HdL 
Companies, NVTA’s sales tax consultant, has provided the most recent quarterly sales 
tax update newsletter for the quarter period of April – June 2021. 

Table 1 on the next page provides the projections for Fiscal Year 2021-22 and revenues 
received through September 2021. 

22

mailto:rmoradi@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority TAC  Agenda Item 8.3 
January 6, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 1: FY 2021-22 Projection vs. Actuals Year-To-Date 
MONTH Projection Actual Difference $ Difference % 

July $1,700,000 $1,619,915 ($80,085) (5%) 

August 1,850,000 1,971,977 121,977 7% 

September 1,850,000 $2,534,376 684,376 37% 

Quarter Total $5,400,000 $3,591,892 $726,268 12% 

October $1,650,000 $- $- -% 
November 1,650,000 - - -% 

December 1,500,000 - - - 

Quarter Total $4,800,000 $- - -% 

January 1,500,000 $- - -% 

February 1,600,000 - - -% 

March 1,700,000 - - -% 

Quarter Total $4,800,000 $- $- -% 

April 1,600,000 $- - -% 

May 1,700,000     - - -% 

June 1,700,000     - -   -% 

Quarter Total $5,000,000  $-      $- -% 

Total 
Revenues 
 (To Date) $17,494,200 $3,591,892 $41,892 -% 

23



Napa Valley Transportation Authority TAC  Agenda Item 8.3 
January 6, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 2 provides actual revenues for FYs 2018-19 to 2020-21 and revenue projections 
for the next four years. Revenues are expected to remain flat in FY 2021-22 then grow 
modestly thereafter. With assistance from HdL, staff is monitoring the projections carefully 
which may change as the economic conditions evolve. 

Table 2:  Current and five (5) year revenue projections 

Actual Actual Actual Projection 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

$19,706,658 $18,639,855 $20,454,360 $20,000,000 $20,676,000 $21,104,600 $21,442,200 

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) NVTA Sales Tax Update – Newsletter
(2) NVTA 2Q21 Final Report
(3) Measure T Revenue Allocation Tracking Spreadsheet

24



www.hdlcompanies.com | 888.861.0220

Q2 2020*

Q2 2021*

Legend

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

SALES TAX BY MAJOR BUSINESS GROUP*Allocation aberrations have been adjusted to reflect sales activity

Business
and

Industry

General
Consumer

Goods

Restaurants
and

Hotels

Autos
and

Transportation

Building
and

Construction

Fuel and
Service
Stations

Food
and

Drugs

County
and State

Pools

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
(NVTA) HIGHLIGHTS

Published by HdL Companies in Fall 2021

TOP NON-CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS TYPES

Q2 '21*

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)

Business Type

HdL State

Change Change

 723.9 102.1% 45.4%Wineries
 413.6 49.3% 55.9%New Motor Vehicle Dealers
 353.4 21.0% 21.7%Building Materials
 325.3 164.1% 130.3%Casual Dining
 301.2 61.2% 73.9%Service Stations
 249.0 5.4% -7.1%General Merchandise
 219.9 326.5% 196.1%Fine Dining
 208.3 -0.2% 20.3%Discount Dept Stores
 195.8 20.9% 23.6%Contractors
 141.8 42.3% 88.5%Home Furnishings

*Allocation aberrations have been adjusted to reflect sales activity *In thousands of dollars

SALES TAX UPDATE
NVTA 

2Q 2021 (APRIL - JUNE)

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
(NVTA)’s receipts from April through June 
were 38.3% above the second sales period 
in 2020. Excluding reporting aberrations, 
actual sales were up 45.7%.  Surprisingly, 24 
of the top 25 segments submitted positive 
revenue comparisons over prior year 
quarterly figures.

The County’s local economy began to 
emerge from COVID-19 and experienced 
outstanding returns; totals noted in the bar 
above were $460,000, or 9%, beyond the 
second quarter reporting in 2019.  Business 
types tied into the tourism industry paced 
this good news; wineries rebounded 
$366,000 and alone captured 20% of the 

overall growth.  

Consumers began eating out again, resulting 
in a positive burst of casual and fine dining 
restaurant activity. Much improved hotel 
occupancies pushed this category up 
583%.  Service stations disclosed more fuel 
consumption at higher pump rates. 

Last year many non-essential stores were 
closed due to pandemic based statewide 
mandates.  As shoppers returned with zeal, 
general consumer goods sectors including 
home furnishings and family apparel 
revealed vigorous sales.

Buyer’s depleted existing inventories while 
paying premium prices for cars and trucks 
sold at new and used vehicle dealers.  
Drastic jumps in lumber prices contributed 
to the building materials gain; contractors 
remained busy during the spring months.

TOP NON-CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS TYPES

TOTAL: $ 5,720,446

NVTA  45.7%  37.3%
STATE

AUTHORITY (NVTA)
2Q2021

ATTACHMENT 1
TAC Agenda Item 8.3

January 6, 2022

25



 MAJOR BUSINESS GROUP TRENDS BY COUNTY

    Percent Change from 2nd Quarter 2020 *

RestaurantsCons. GoodsFuelFood/DrugBus/ind.Bldg/ConstAutos/Tran.

 49.1%  27.9%  21.5%  80.4% 105.3%-2.0%  73.4%Alameda Co.

 45.1%  28.7%  14.1%  72.9% 77.0%1.2%  49.7%Contra Costa Co.

 88.2%  35.8%  19.7%  110.5% 93.8%-0.5%  77.8%Marin Co.

 44.2%  32.1%  45.0%  170.2% 48.5%8.9%  63.7%Napa Co.

 34.1%  20.0%  45.1%  130.2% 153.0%-2.1%  120.0%San Francisco Co.

 68.2%  31.7%  73.1%  101.0% 87.3%-1.4%  92.7%San Mateo Co.

 59.3%  36.4%  4.1%  79.0% 39.9%0.7%  80.2%Santa Clara Co.

 43.4%  19.5%  13.5%  55.8% 55.3%1.5%  55.2%Solano Co.

 46.1%  13.1%  18.6%  89.0% 70.4%2.0%  55.4%Sonoma Co.

*Allocation aberrations have been adjusted to reflect sales activity

SALES TAX UPDATENAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)2Q 2021

STATEWIDE RESULTS

The local one cent sales and use tax from 
sales occurring April through June, was 37% 
higher than the same quarter one year ago 
after factoring for accounting anomalies 
and back payments from previous quarters.

The 2nd quarter of 2020 was the most 
adversely impacted sales tax period related 
to the Covid-19 pandemic and Shelter-
In-Place directive issued by Governor 
Newsom.  The 2Q21 comparison quarter 
of 2Q20 was the lowest since 2Q14 
due to indoor dining restrictions at most 
restaurants; non-essential brick and mortar 
store closures; and employee remote/work 
from home options which significantly 
reduced commuting traffic and fuel sales. 
Therefore, similar to the 1st quarter 2020 
comparison, dramatic percentage gains for 
2Q21 were anticipated and materialized.

Up to this point through California’s 
recovery, we’ve seen some regions 
experience stronger gains than others.  
However, with the latest data and the 
depths of declines in the comparison 
period, statewide most regions saw very 
similar growth.

Within the results, prolonged gains by 

the auto-transportation and building-
construction industries generated higher 
receipts. Although the explosion of sales 
by new and used car dealers has come 
as welcome relief, the latest news of 
inventories being stretched thin due to the 
micro processing chip issues earlier in the 
year may result in a headwind into 2022. 
Conversely for the building-construction 
group, as housing prices in many markets 
increased over the last year, sustained 
available homeowner and investor equity is 
in place for the foreseeable future. Receipts 
from general consumer goods marked a 
steady and expected come back, led by 
family apparel, jewelry and home furnishing 
stores.  When combined with solid greater 
economic trends, this is a welcome sign for 
many companies as a lead up to the normal 
holiday shopping period later this calendar 
year.

As consumers flock back into retail locations 
and with AB 147 fully implemented, growth 
from the county use tax pools - largely 
enhanced by out-of-state online sales activity 
- returned to more traditional gains of 9%.
These results also included the reallocation
of tax dollars previously distributed through
the countywide pools to specific local

jurisdictions that operate in-state fulfillment 
centers.  Thus, the business and industry 
category, where fulfillment centers, medical-
biotech vendors and garden-agricultural 
supplies are shown, jumped 26%.

In June, many restaurants reopened indoor 
dining.  Given consumer desires to eat out 
and beautiful spring weather, all categories 
experienced a strong, much-needed 
rebound. However, labor shortages and a 
rise in menu prices continue to be a concern.

Looking ahead, sustained sales tax growth 
is still anticipated through the end of the 
2021 calendar year.  Inflationary effects 
are showing up in the cost of many taxable 
products.  Pent up demand for travel and 
experiences, the return of commuters with 
more costly fuel, and labor shortages having 
upward pressure on prices may begin to 
consume more disposable income and 
tighten growth by the start of 2022.

26



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUPS

ADJUSTED FOR
ECONOMIC DATA

Major Industry Group 2Q21Count $ Change % Change2Q20

 1,690,558  7,931  542,151 47.2% 1,148,406 Business and Industry
 1,134,668  4,136  227,175 25.0% 907,493 General Consumer Goods

 849,833  415  537,316 171.9% 312,517 Restaurants and Hotels
 718,369  1,271  212,119 41.9% 506,250 Autos and Transportation
 663,635  1,115  110,063 19.9% 553,572 Building and Construction
 317,197  109  114,288 56.3% 202,909 Fuel and Service Stations
 280,584  308  21,884 8.5% 258,700 Food and Drugs

 65,602  3,490  28,353 76.1% 37,249 Transfers & Unidentified
 0  -  0 -N/A- 0 State and County Pools

 5,720,446  18,775Total  1,793,350 45.7% 3,927,097 

$0K

$200K

$400K

$600K

$800K

$1,000K

$1,200K

$1,400K

$1,600K

$1,800K

Business
and

Industry

General
Consumer

Goods

Restaurants
and

Hotels

Autos
and

Transportation

Building
and

Construction

Fuel and
Service
Stations

Food
and

Drugs

State and
County
Pools

2Q20 Compared To 2Q21

2Q20 2Q21

2Q21 Percent of Total

30%

Business
and

Industry

20%

General
Consumer

Goods

15%

Restaurants
and

Hotels

13%

Autos
and

Transportation

12%

Building
and

Construction
6%

Fuel and
Service
Stations

5%

Food
and

Drugs

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION
HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com10/20/2021   7:54 am Page 1 of 1

ATTACHMENT 2
 TAC Agenda Item 8.3 

January 6, 2022

27



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUPS

ADJUSTED FOR
ECONOMIC DATA

Major Industry Group FY 20/21Count $ Change % ChangeFY 19/20

 5,854,899  7,931 (104,135) -1.7% 5,959,033 Business and Industry
 4,287,087  4,136  647,948 17.8% 3,639,139 General Consumer Goods
 2,744,164  1,271  444,684 19.3% 2,299,480 Autos and Transportation
 2,371,265  415 (465,491) -16.4% 2,836,756 Restaurants and Hotels
 2,266,998  1,115  68,351 3.1% 2,198,646 Building and Construction
 1,063,317  308  67,032 6.7% 996,285 Food and Drugs
 1,016,996  109 (94,201) -8.5% 1,111,196 Fuel and Service Stations

 219,021  3,490  82,774 60.8% 136,247 Transfers & Unidentified
 0  -  0 -N/A- 0 State and County Pools

 19,823,746  18,775Total  646,964 3.4% 19,176,782 

$0K

$1,000K

$2,000K

$3,000K

$4,000K

$5,000K

$6,000K

Business
and

Industry

General
Consumer

Goods

Autos
and

Transportation

Restaurants
and

Hotels

Building
and

Construction

Food
and

Drugs

Fuel and
Service
Stations

State and
County
Pools

FY 19/20 Compared To FY 20/21

FY 19/20 FY 20/21

FY 20/21 Percent of Total

30%

Business
and

Industry

22%

General
Consumer

Goods

14%

Autos
and

Transportation

12%

Restaurants
and

Hotels

12%

Building
and

Construction
5%

Food
and

Drugs

5%

Fuel and
Service
Stations

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION
HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com10/20/2021   7:54 am Page 1 of 128



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUPS

Major Industry Group FY 20/21Count $ Change % ChangeFY 19/20

 6,161,797  7,931  336,103 5.8% 5,825,693 Business and Industry
 4,370,775  4,136  731,505 20.1% 3,639,270 General Consumer Goods
 2,815,690  1,271  578,149 25.8% 2,237,541 Autos and Transportation
 2,503,129  415 (267,697) -9.7% 2,770,826 Restaurants and Hotels
 2,373,853  1,115  232,212 10.8% 2,141,641 Building and Construction
 1,114,218  308  156,049 16.3% 958,169 Food and Drugs
 1,021,810  109 (78,650) -7.1% 1,100,460 Fuel and Service Stations

 237,000  3,490  97,654 70.1% 139,345 Transfers & Unidentified
 0  -  0 -N/A- 0 State and County Pools

 20,598,272  18,775Total  1,785,326 9.5% 18,812,946 

$0K

$1,000K

$2,000K

$3,000K

$4,000K

$5,000K

$6,000K

$7,000K

Business
and

Industry

General
Consumer

Goods

Autos
and

Transportation

Restaurants
and

Hotels

Building
and

Construction

Food
and

Drugs

Fuel and
Service
Stations

State and
County
Pools

FY 19/20 Compared To FY 20/21

FY 19/20 FY 20/21

FY 20/21 Percent of Total

30%

Business
and

Industry

21%

General
Consumer

Goods

14%

Autos
and

Transportation

12%

Restaurants
and

Hotels

12%

Building
and

Construction
5%

Food
and

Drugs

5%

Fuel and
Service
Stations

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION
HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com10/20/2021   7:54 am Page 1 of 129



NAPA COUNTY ALL AGENCIES
SALES TAX TRENDS FOR ALL AGENCIES - 2Q 2021 SALES

Count 2Q 2021 2Q 2020 % ChangeAgency Name County Pool
Share of Actual Receipts

% Change
Adjusted

Agency allocations reflect "point of sale" receipts

Current Year Prior Year

 368,366Yountville  192  117,053 +214.7%3.7% +304.1%

 318,876Calistoga  338  172,564 + 84.8%3.2% + 94.8%

 3,341,779Napa Co. Uninc  2,564  2,232,137 + 49.7%33.5% + 62.0%

 4,339,177Napa  3,514  3,183,338 + 36.3%43.5% + 50.5%

 927,953St. Helena  542  571,170 + 62.5%9.3% + 44.8%

 674,786American Canyon  581  548,420 + 23.0%6.8% + 25.5%

 7,731  9,970,936  6,824,682 + 46.1%Totals 100.0% + 55.9%

 1,840,821Napa Pool  9,817  1,649,427 + 11.6% + 11.1%

Page 1 of 110/20/2021   7:54 am HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com

30



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUPS - 13 QUARTER HISTORY

ADJUSTED FOR
ECONOMIC DATA

Sales Tax by Major Industry Group

($200)K

$0K

$200K

$400K

$600K

$800K

$1,000K

$1,200K

$1,400K

$1,600K

$1,800K

2Q
18

3Q
18

4Q
18

1Q
19

2Q
19

3Q
19

4Q
19

1Q
20

2Q
20

3Q
20

4Q
20

1Q
21

2Q
21

Count: 7,931

Business And Industry

Count: 4,136

General Consumer Goods

Count: 415

Restaurants And Hotels

Count: 1,271

Autos And Transportation

Count: 1,115

Building And Construction

Count: 109

Fuel And Service Stations

Count: 308

Food And Drugs

Count: 3,490

Transfers & Unidentified

Agency Trend

$0K

$1,000K

$2,000K

$3,000K

$4,000K

$5,000K

$6,000K

2Q
18

3Q
18

4Q
18

1Q
19

2Q
19

3Q
19

4Q
19

1Q
20

2Q
20

3Q
20

4Q
20

1Q
21

2Q
21

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)

13 Quarter Trend: +43.9%

Periods shown reflect the period in which the sales occurred - Point of Sale

10/20/2021   7:55 am HdL •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION31



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUPS - 5 YEAR HISTORY*

ADJUSTED FOR
ECONOMIC DATA

Sales Tax by Major Industry Group

($1,000)K

$0K

$1,000K

$2,000K

$3,000K

$4,000K

$5,000K

$6,000K

$7,000K

16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21

Count: 7,931

Business And Industry

Count: 4,136

General Consumer Goods

Count: 1,271

Autos And Transportation

Count: 415

Restaurants And Hotels

Count: 1,115

Building And Construction

Count: 308

Food And Drugs

Count: 109

Fuel And Service Stations

Count: 3,490

Transfers & Unidentified

Agency Trend

($5,000)K

$0K

$5,000K

$10,000K

$15,000K

$20,000K

$25,000K

17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA)

4 Year Trend: +283.1%

Periods shown reflect the period in which the sales occurred - Point of Sale

10/20/2021   7:55 am HdL •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION
32



NAPA VALLEY MEASURE T
TRANSACTIONS & USE TAX ALLOCATION SUMMARY

Seven Major

Industry Groups

Fiscal Yr

2018-19

Totals

FY 2019-20 Sales Quarters Fiscal Yr

2019-20

Totals

Fiscal Yr

2020-21

Totals

FY 2020-21 Sales Quarters

3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 2Q1Q4Q3Q

Dollar

Change

Prior Yr

Percent

Change

Prior Yr

YTD

% Change

Prior Yr

District Tax

Autos And Transportation  2,548,131  640,976  631,854  417,282  547,428  2,237,541  713,252  674,135  664,121  764,182  2,815,690 (310,590) -12% 26%

Building And Construction  1,982,049  603,760  531,434  459,701  546,747  2,141,641  602,626  538,556  533,551  699,120  2,373,853  159,592 8% 11%

Business And Industry  6,412,190  1,637,995  1,674,925  1,163,420  1,349,352  5,825,693  1,441,253  1,375,095  1,355,104  1,990,345  6,161,797 (586,497) -9% 6%

Food And Drugs  914,421  250,450  246,685  185,065  275,969  958,169  296,961  269,642  237,268  310,347  1,114,218  43,748 5% 16%

Fuel And Service Stations  1,247,737  333,449  325,088  234,562  207,361  1,100,460  236,300  220,040  250,808  314,662  1,021,810 (147,277) -12% -7%

General Consumer Goods  3,215,446  880,669  1,096,780  648,963  1,012,858  3,639,270  1,030,766  1,162,250  990,863  1,186,897  4,370,775  423,824 13% 20%

Restaurants And Hotels  3,497,191  1,011,891  861,529  339,584  557,822  2,770,826  579,552  445,922  523,204  954,451  2,503,129 (726,365) -21% -10%

Transfers & Unidentified  50,512  26,056  30,497  26,297  56,496  139,345  51,049  55,897  53,413  76,641  237,000  88,834 176% 70%

9%-5%(1,054,732)Total District Tax  19,867,678  5,385,246  18,812,946  4,554,033  3,474,873  5,398,793  20,598,272  6,296,645  4,608,331  4,741,538  4,951,758 

Less: Cost of Administration (15,800)(199,750) (46,050) (46,050) (64,290) (59,160) (215,550) (59,160) (59,160) (2,040) (50,510) (170,870)-8% 21%

 4,606,291  20,427,402 Grand Total  4,494,873  4,892,598  5,339,196  18,597,396 (1,070,532) -5% 19,667,928 10% 5,352,743  3,410,583  4,682,378  6,246,135 

Budget  19,637,434  0 

**Due to the monthly allocation changes by CDTFA, as of 1st Quarter 2018 all fiscal year totals will be reported on an accrual basis (July to June sales).

Budget vs.

Receipts

(In Thousands)

10/20/2021   7:55 am HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATIONCONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION33

http://www.hdlcompanies.com


BAY AREA
ACTUAL/ADJUSTED COMPARISON - BY COUNTY AND MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUP

ACTUAL RECEIPTS ADJUSTED FOR ECONOMIC DATA

% Change % Change2Q 2021 2Q 2020 2Q 2021 2Q 2020
Alameda County

Autos And Transportation  12,658,330 18,952,385  11,275,030 16,813,26049.7% 49.1%
Building And Construction  8,040,059 9,827,974  7,320,222 9,363,75822.2% 27.9%
Business And Industry  14,851,561 18,440,696  14,045,553 17,066,12824.2% 21.5%
Food And Drugs  4,773,200 5,191,586  4,520,883 4,428,5288.8% -2.0%
Fuel And Service Stations  3,666,626 6,427,933  2,855,286 4,949,66375.3% 73.4%
General Consumer Goods  8,291,550 13,849,514  6,410,304 13,157,50867.0% 105.3%
Restaurants And Hotels  7,596,526 10,011,120  4,697,524 8,476,50431.8% 80.4%
Transfers & Unidentified  157,982 316,210  98,995 130,405100.2% 31.7%
County & State Pool  17,893,753 19,182,737  17,522,268 18,995,9237.2% 8.4%

 77,929,587 102,200,154  68,746,065 93,381,67631.1% 35.8%

Contra Costa County

Autos And Transportation  6,626,768 9,758,648  6,139,023 8,907,44847.3% 45.1%
Building And Construction  4,071,591 5,447,842  3,997,587 5,143,56533.8% 28.7%
Business And Industry  4,713,701 6,451,928  5,079,265 5,797,64036.9% 14.1%
Food And Drugs  3,205,559 3,411,325  3,114,288 3,152,0676.4% 1.2%
Fuel And Service Stations  3,197,978 4,556,254  2,728,566 4,084,31942.5% 49.7%
General Consumer Goods  6,471,886 9,453,937  5,188,429 9,185,60546.1% 77.0%
Restaurants And Hotels  4,565,903 6,010,726  3,106,861 5,372,35731.6% 72.9%
Transfers & Unidentified  86,226 202,279  77,387 78,564134.6% 1.5%
County & State Pool  10,912,994 11,957,188  10,765,012 11,951,8269.6% 11.0%

 43,852,607 57,250,128  40,196,420 53,673,38930.6% 33.5%

Marin County

Autos And Transportation  2,370,949 4,028,607  2,026,470 3,813,65769.9% 88.2%
Building And Construction  1,340,931 1,815,090  1,293,202 1,755,63435.4% 35.8%
Business And Industry  701,477 881,854  689,381 825,22825.7% 19.7%
Food And Drugs  1,138,995 1,102,716  1,030,717 1,025,445-3.2% -0.5%
Fuel And Service Stations  611,800 1,006,221  504,312 896,81964.5% 77.8%
General Consumer Goods  1,786,947 3,023,970  1,477,773 2,864,52469.2% 93.8%
Restaurants And Hotels  1,371,520 2,071,743  838,892 1,765,97251.1% 110.5%
Transfers & Unidentified  39,932 55,803  19,871 15,24939.7% -23.3%
County & State Pool  3,210,376 3,233,581  3,188,825 3,124,0120.7% -2.0%

 12,572,928 17,219,585  11,069,443 16,086,54037.0% 45.3%

Napa County

Autos And Transportation  544,637 808,807  497,903 717,76548.5% 44.2%
Building And Construction  759,553 1,004,380  767,082 1,013,43632.2% 32.1%
Business And Industry  2,505,840 3,787,100  2,028,056 2,940,85251.1% 45.0%
Food And Drugs  548,694 618,810  510,507 555,77812.8% 8.9%
Fuel And Service Stations  392,152 622,451  378,133 618,91658.7% 63.7%
General Consumer Goods  932,846 1,184,371  750,376 1,114,26727.0% 48.5%
Restaurants And Hotels  1,103,075 1,935,977  638,227 1,724,39775.5% 170.2%
Transfers & Unidentified  37,885 9,040  1,375 2,543-76.1% 84.9%
County & State Pool  1,652,120 1,843,879  1,566,105 1,739,23211.6% 11.1%

 8,476,801 11,814,816  7,137,765 10,427,18639.4% 46.1%

San Francisco County

Autos And Transportation  2,086,469 2,748,055  2,005,283 2,688,84631.7% 34.1%
Building And Construction  2,733,800 2,969,853  2,351,829 2,821,6958.6% 20.0%
Business And Industry  3,769,045 4,404,629  3,054,374 4,433,29416.9% 45.1%
Food And Drugs  3,405,615 3,070,220  2,642,609 2,587,021-9.8% -2.1%
Fuel And Service Stations  675,091 1,466,671  646,871 1,423,201117.3% 120.0%
General Consumer Goods  4,724,914 9,049,288  3,368,724 8,523,06391.5% 153.0%
Restaurants And Hotels  7,564,750 8,829,769  3,160,493 7,274,45316.7% 130.2%
Transfers & Unidentified  187,854 139,519  78,112 78,911-25.7% 1.0%
County & State Pool  11,313,167 11,153,378  10,504,844 10,705,678-1.4% 1.9%

 36,460,705 43,831,382  27,813,138 40,536,16220.2% 45.7%

San Mateo County

Autos And Transportation  5,059,321 8,669,515  4,679,616 7,872,79371.4% 68.2%
Building And Construction  3,788,676 4,641,106  3,413,465 4,496,77222.5% 31.7%
Business And Industry  4,409,958 7,958,354  3,872,616 6,703,80780.5% 73.1%
Food And Drugs  2,448,539 2,439,074  2,283,767 2,251,039-0.4% -1.4%
Fuel And Service Stations  1,823,127 2,842,572  1,359,266 2,619,36455.9% 92.7%
General Consumer Goods  5,963,758 8,345,530  4,251,730 7,965,23439.9% 87.3%
Restaurants And Hotels  4,679,150 5,989,879  2,547,188 5,119,83328.0% 101.0%
Transfers & Unidentified  53,565 123,260  27,487 38,067130.1% 38.5%
County & State Pool  10,655,700 10,928,729  10,188,099 10,786,7272.6% 5.9%

 38,881,795 51,938,020  32,623,234 47,853,63533.6% 46.7%

10/20/2021   7:54 am Page 1 of 2
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION

HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com
34



BAY AREA

ACTUAL/ADJUSTED COMPARISON - BY COUNTY AND MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUP

ACTUAL RECEIPTS ADJUSTED FOR ECONOMIC DATA

% Change % Change2Q 2021 2Q 2020 2Q 2021 2Q 2020
Santa Clara County

Autos And Transportation  12,167,974 19,918,460  10,934,159 17,423,18963.7% 59.3%
Building And Construction  7,883,157 10,299,190  7,261,082 9,904,86730.6% 36.4%
Business And Industry  29,510,694 26,762,954  26,623,761 27,703,313-9.3% 4.1%
Food And Drugs  4,836,321 4,931,721  4,419,440 4,448,3222.0% 0.7%
Fuel And Service Stations  3,961,222 6,107,583  3,098,357 5,583,83654.2% 80.2%
General Consumer Goods  22,485,000 28,616,939  19,956,186 27,924,62627.3% 39.9%
Restaurants And Hotels  9,683,467 13,057,439  6,390,632 11,439,64834.8% 79.0%
Transfers & Unidentified  103,126-1,418,650  80,317 116,681-1475.6% 45.3%
County & State Pool  24,351,434 25,617,929  23,554,084 24,267,0035.2% 3.0%

 114,982,395 133,893,563  102,318,017 128,811,48516.4% 25.9%

Solano County

Autos And Transportation  3,429,578 5,068,361  3,244,479 4,653,71047.8% 43.4%
Building And Construction  1,832,752 2,282,321  1,851,387 2,212,41224.5% 19.5%
Business And Industry  2,905,973 4,161,303  3,456,531 3,921,70643.2% 13.5%
Food And Drugs  1,041,188 1,151,117  1,033,685 1,049,06610.6% 1.5%
Fuel And Service Stations  1,146,020 2,410,095  1,357,454 2,107,365110.3% 55.2%
General Consumer Goods  3,248,977 4,387,609  2,729,921 4,239,23135.0% 55.3%
Restaurants And Hotels  1,997,560 2,605,973  1,492,514 2,325,49130.5% 55.8%
Transfers & Unidentified  35,813 12,079  26,699 2,653-66.3% -90.1%
County & State Pool  4,053,378 4,475,595  4,005,287 4,173,69010.4% 4.2%

 19,691,238 26,554,453  19,197,958 24,685,32534.9% 28.6%

Sonoma County

Autos And Transportation  3,570,512 5,118,071  3,152,165 4,603,84343.3% 46.1%
Building And Construction  3,699,239 4,277,711  3,632,415 4,108,82315.6% 13.1%
Business And Industry  3,591,217 4,518,335  3,247,364 3,852,77925.8% 18.6%
Food And Drugs  2,001,878 2,129,497  1,897,367 1,935,1966.4% 2.0%
Fuel And Service Stations  1,284,291 2,123,529  1,246,326 1,936,27165.3% 55.4%
General Consumer Goods  3,136,757 4,711,970  2,624,490 4,473,40250.2% 70.4%
Restaurants And Hotels  2,282,867 3,385,014  1,596,942 3,018,70248.3% 89.0%
Transfers & Unidentified  26,277 79,053  18,214 40,715200.8% 123.5%
County & State Pool  5,103,522 5,069,943  4,857,775 5,015,611-0.7% 3.2%

 24,696,559 31,413,125  22,273,058 28,985,34327.2% 30.1%

Bay Area Totals

Autos And Transportation
Building And Construction
Business And Industry
Food And Drugs
Fuel And Service Stations
General Consumer Goods
Restaurants And Hotels
Transfers & Unidentified

 48,514,538 75,070,909  43,954,128 67,494,510
 34,149,758 42,565,467  31,888,271 40,820,962
 66,959,465 77,367,154  62,096,902 73,244,746
 23,399,989 24,046,066  21,453,265 21,432,462
 16,758,307 27,563,309  14,174,571 24,219,753
 57,042,635 82,623,127  46,757,933 79,447,460
 40,844,819 53,897,641  24,469,272 46,517,358

 728,659-481,408  428,458 503,789

54.7% 53.6%
24.6% 28.0%
15.5% 18.0%

2.8% -0.1%
64.5% 70.9%
44.8% 69.9%
32.0% 90.1%

-166.1% 17.6%

34.1% 444,440,742  331,375,09926.1% 476,115,224  377,544,615

County & State Pools  90,759,701 93,462,958  86,152,299 89,146,444 4.8% 5.3%

 2,259,699,911  1,716,149,570  2,120,062,671  1,544,359,771

HdL State Totals

31.7% 37.3%

Autos And Transportation
Building And Construction
Business And Industry
Food And Drugs
Fuel And Service Stations
General Consumer Goods
Restaurants And Hotels
Transfers & Unidentified

 389,785,928  263,240,618  351,197,573  242,359,467
 190,953,997 197,693,828  153,464,916 159,488,237
 321,201,248 347,171,475  247,534,472 277,655,258
 104,939,835 116,138,435  100,887,344 104,882,588
 160,634,142 176,397,550  92,184,482 98,532,276
 376,090,047  226,749,080 391,525,037  271,125,639
 231,404,504 259,480,489  128,402,245 187,278,228

 2,272,166 4,186,926  2,206,320 2,520,807

44.9%48.1%
24.4%24.0%
29.8%25.0%

4.0%10.7%
74.3%79.0%
65.9%44.4%
80.2%38.6%

3.0%66.1%
County & State Pools  377,320,242  350,571,446 351,425,918  381,369,1597.4% 8.8%

*

10/20/2021   7:54 am Page 2 of 2
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - DO NOT COPY OR DISTRIBUTE WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION

HdL  •  909.861.4335  •  www.hdlcompanies.com
35



Napa County Auditor-Controller
Measure T Revenue Allocation
Fiscal Year 2021-22

Agency Fund 9502-95020-25

NVTA-TA Special Revenue Fund 8310 Subdivision
83100-01

Subdivision
83100-00

Subdivision
83100-06

Subdivision
83100-07

Subdivision
83100-08

Subdivision
83100-09

Subdivision
83100-10

Transaction
 Date AR-Journal IDs

Transaction
 Type Total ITOC Total less ITOC Administration American Canyon City of Napa Yountville St. Helena Calistoga Total

Unincorp. Airport
70,000+CPI

(2nd qtr) 1.00% 39.65% 7.70% 40.35% 2.70% 5.90% 2.70% 100.00%
Sales Tax Receipts

09/24/21 AR Batch 2166 & Journal 2448 July 2021 1,619,914.74 72,190.64             1,547,724.10 15,477.24              613,672.61      - 119,174.76 624,506.67 41,788.55                 91,315.72                 41,788.55                 1,547,724.10            
10/26/21 AR Batch 2871 & Journal 1484 August 1,971,976.74 - 1,971,976.74 19,719.77              781,888.78      - 151,842.21 795,692.61 53,243.37                 116,346.63               53,243.37                 1,971,976.74            
11/24/21 AR Batch 3617 & Journal 1642 September 2,534,375.81 - 2,534,375.81 25,343.76              1,004,880.00  - 195,146.94 1,022,620.64               68,428.15                 149,528.17               68,428.15                 2,534,375.81            

Total Sales Tax-1st Quarter 6,126,267.29 72,190.64             6,054,076.65 60,540.77              2,400,441.39  - 466,163.91 2,442,819.92               163,460.07               357,190.52               163,460.07               6,054,076.65            
October - - - - - - - - - - - - 
November - - - - - - - - - - - - 
December - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Total Sales Tax-2nd Quarter - - - - - - - - - - - - 
January 2022 - - - - - - - - - - - - 
February - - - - - - - - - - - - 
March - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Total Sales Tax-3rd Quarter - - - - - - - - - - - - 
April - - - - - - - - - - - - 
May - - - - - - - - - - - - 
June - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Total Sales Tax-4th Quarter - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Total Sales Tax: 6,126,267.29 72,190.64             6,054,076.65 60,540.77              2,400,441.39  - 466,163.91 2,442,819.92               163,460.07               357,190.52               163,460.07               6,054,076.65            

variance - - 
Interest Earnings

1st Qtr 2020-21 - - - - - - - - - - - - 
2nd Qtr - - - - - - - - - - - - 
3rd Qtr - - - - - - - - - - - - 
4th Qtr - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Total Interest Earnings: - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Receipts: 6,126,267.29 72,190.64             6,054,076.65 60,540.77              2,400,441.39  - 466,163.91 2,442,819.92               163,460.07               357,190.52               163,460.07               6,054,076.65            

Allocate Disbursements
10/20/21 Batch 2830 & Journal 1134 Disbursement 1,619,914.74 72,190.64             1,547,724.10 15,477.24              613,672.61      - 119,174.76 624,506.67 41,788.55                 91,315.72                 41,788.55                 1,547,724.10            

Disbursement - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Disbursement - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Disbursement - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Disbursement - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Reimbursements: 1,619,914.74 72,190.64             1,547,724.10 15,477.24              613,672.61      - 119,174.76 624,506.67 41,788.55                 91,315.72                 41,788.55                 1,547,724.10            

Total Net (Receipts/Disbursements) 4,506,352.55 - 4,506,352.55 45,063.53              1,786,768.78  - 346,989.15 1,818,313.25               121,671.52               265,874.80               121,671.52               4,506,352.55            

Subdivision
83100-05

County of Napa

ATTACHMENT 3
TAC Agenda Item 8.3

January 6, 2022

36


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_Staff Report
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	0002_1_Caltrans Report
	PROJECT INITIATION REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL
	DESIGN

	Schedule: PAED: 2/4/20  PSE: 11/2021 RWC: 3/2022 RTL: 3/2022 CCA: 09/2023
	EA 28120
	Soscol Junction Improvement; NAPA 29 PM 5.0/7.1 and NAPA 221 PM 0.0/0.7 in County of Napa
	Env. Mitigation at Huichica Creek; NAPA 121-PM 0.75 in County of Napa
	Schedule: PAED: 4/9/18  PS&E: 03/2023 RWC: 04/2023 RTL: 05/2023 CCA: 12/2028
	EA 1G43A
	Env. Mitigation at Conn Creek; NAPA 128 PM R7.4 on Silverado Trail in County of Napa
	Capell Creek Bridge Env Mitigation; NAPA 128-PM 20.2 in County of Napa
	Schedule: PAED: 6/16/16     RWC: 05/2023  RTL: 05/2023  CCA: 03/2027
	EA 3G64A
	Env. Mitigation & Plant Establishment at Napa River Bridge; NAPA 29 PM 37.0 in City of Calistoga
	Widen Roadway at Huichica Creek; NAPA 121-PM 0.75 in County of Napa
	Schedule: PAED: 4/9/18 RTL: 12/8/20 AWD: 5/19/21 (Gordon Ball Inc)  CCA: 03/2024
	Schedule: PAED: 7/24/17 RTL: 5/18/20  AWD: 11/2/20 (Ghilotti Const. Inc) CCA: 12/2021
	Capell Creek Storm Damage Repair; NAPA 121-PM 20.5/20.7 in County of Napa
	Schedule: PAED: 7/24/17 RTL: 6/29/18 AWD: 11/19/18 (Granite Rock Co.) CCA: 03/2022
	EA 1G430
	Conn Creek Bridge Scour Mitigation; NAPA 128 PM R7.4 on Silverado Trail in County of Napa
	Capell Creek Bridge; NAPA 128-PM 20.2 in County of Napa
	Schedule: PAED: 6/16/16 RTL: 6/29/18 AWD: 11/5/18 (Gordon Ball Inc.)  CCA: 01/2023

	0003_1_Draft Minutes
	0004_1_Staff Report
	TAC Item 8.1 Attch 1_NVVTC Board Roster Oct 2021
	Sheet1

	TAC Item 8.1 NVVTC Board - KA-KM question
	Action Requested:  Action


	0005_1_Staff Report
	TAC Item 8.2 00 PDA-IGS Update_des-KM changes
	Action Requested:  Action
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	TAC Item 8.2 Attach 1a_  American Canyon_Highway 29 Corridor_PDA Investment and Growth Strategy Worksheet_combined DM_EAS
	Transportation
	Aff Housing
	Infrastructure (non-transport)
	Transit

	TAC Item 8.2 Attach 1b City of Napa_Downtown Napa Soscol Gateway Corridor- PDA Investment and Growth Strategy Project Information (11-15-21)
	Transportation
	Aff Housing
	Infrastructure (non-transport)
	Transit

	TAC Item 8.2 Attach 2 PDA-IGS Strategy Memo_Draft_dm_V3-KM changes

	0006_1_Staff Report
	TAC Item 8.3 Measure T sales Tax Update-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	TAC Item 8.3_Measure T Sales Tax Update - Attch 1 Newsletter
	TAC Item 8.3_Measure T Sales Tax Update_NVTA 2Q21 Final Reports- Mod Board Memo_Attach 2
	TAC Item 8.3_Measure T - FY2021-22_Attach 3
	2021-22





